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1 (9:03 a.m.) 

2 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Good morning, 

3 everybody. This hearing w i l l come t o order at t h i s 

4 p o i n t , and we're going t o go i n t o the docket. This i s a 

5 s p e c i a l docket hearing. We normally conduct our 

6 hearings on Thursdays, but because t h i s case i s 

7 contested, we moved i t t o , obviously, today, August 

8 19th. 

9 So today i s Monday, August 19th. I t ' s 9:00 

10 a.m. i n the morning, and we have one case on the docket, 

11 and the docket number i s Docket Number 28-13 t h a t we're 

12 going t o hear today. We're going t o s t a r t , and 

13 h o p e f u l l y we are going t o f i n i s h today. I w i l l c a l l f o r 

14 the docket and c a l l f o r appearances and see what we have 

15 before we -- see what we can do t o make sure we conclude 

16 t h i s case today. 

17 At t h i s p o i n t , I c a l l Case Number 14994. 

18 This i s the a p p l i c a t i o n of Cimarex Energy Company of 

19 Colorado t o r e i n s t a t e i n j e c t i o n a u t h o r i t y , Eddy County, 

2 0 New Mexico. 

21 C a l l f o r appearances. 

22 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, Jim Bruce of 

23 Santa Fe representing the Ap p l i c a n t . I have three 

24 witnesses. 

25 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Any other appearances? 
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1 MR. MARTIN: W. T. Marti n , Tom Martin, 

2 Mart i n , Doogan & Ma r t i n of Carlsbad, and I represent 

3 Ross Ranch. And I have one witness today. 

4 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Any other appearances? 

5 How do we want t o proceed? I t h i n k the 

6 Examiners would l i k e t o l i s t e n t o pre-comment, you know. 

7 What do you c a l l t h a t i n l e g a l terms? 

8 EXAMINER BROOKS: Opening statements. 

9 MR. BRUCE: Opening statements. 

10 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Opening statements, so 

11 t h a t we know what's going on. The opening statement 

12 should address the nature of contention and see whether 

13 I'm going t o continue i t , because I t h i n k I would l i k e 

14 t o have t h i s case concluded today, i f you don't mind. 

15 MR. BRUCE: We're -- opposing counsel and I 

16 are p r e t t y darn sure t h a t i t ' l l be concluded, h o p e f u l l y 

17 t h i s morning, perhaps. 
18 MR. MARTIN: I would t h i n k we could be 

19 through by noon. 

2 0 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. Very good. That 

21 would be wonderful. Very good. 

22 Now, the f i r s t t h i n g we should do i s , f o r 

23 a l l the people who are going t o be witnesses today w i l l 

24 stand, you know, s t a t e t h e i r name. And i f you have your 

2 5 card, give your card t o the court r e p o r t e r so she can 
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get your name a p p r o p r i a t e l y . State your name c a r e f u l l y 

2 and be sworn, please. 

3 MR. PEARCY: David Pearcy, g e o l o g i s t , 

4 Cimarex. 

5 MR. DOWDLE: Nash Dowdle, landman f o r 

6 Cimarex. 

7 MR. GENGLER: Scott Gengler, petroleum 

8 engineer f o r Cimarex. 

9 MR. MEYER: David Meyer w i t h Ross Ranch. 

10 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Swear them i n . 

11 (Witnesses sworn.) 

12 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. S t a r t w i t h your 

13 opening statement. 

14 EXAMINER BROOKS: Did you c a l l f o r 

15 appearances? 

16 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Yeah. 

17 OPENING STATEMENT 

18 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I'm going t o be 

19 p r e t t y b r i e f . I'm sure as the hearing proceeds, I ' l l 

20 have more comments or at the end of the hearing. 

21 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Before you proceed, 

22 Counselor -- I hope I'm not p u t t i n g anybody on t h e i r 

23 pedestal [ s i c ] . I wanted the Examiner t o hear an 

24 opening statement. Do you have an opening statement, or 

25 you don't ? 
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1 MR. BRUCE: A very b r i e f one. A very b r i e f 

2 one. 

3 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Martin, do you have 

4 an opening statement? 

5 MR. MARTIN: I do. 

6 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Oh, okay. So I'm not 

7 doing something t h a t ' s out of the ordinary? 

8 MR. MARTIN: No. 

9 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. Go ahead. 

10 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, Cimarex i s the 

11 operator of the Amoco Federal Well #1 located 1,665 f e e t 

12 from the n o r t h l i n e and 330 f e e t from the east l i n e i n 

13 Unit I of Section 27, Township 26 South, Range 29 East, 

14 Eddy County. 

15 That w e l l was a disposal w e l l . I n 1989, 

16 Mallon O i l Company obtained SWD-380 t o convert the Amoco 

17 Federal #1 i n t o a s a l t w a t e r disposal w e l l . There has 

18 been a hearing on t h i s w e l l , i n Case 14888, where Ross 

19 Ranch sought t o revoke Order SWD-380, and t h a t was done 

20 i n Order R-13699, the order was rescinded because Ross 

21 Ranch -- or, a c t u a l l y , Ross Ranch's predecessors i n 

22 i n t e r e s t d i d not receive c e r t i f i e d - m a i l n o t i c e of the 

23 SWD -- a d m i n i s t r a t i v e SWD a p p l i c a t i o n per the 

24 requirements of a C-108. 
25 Cimarex i s here today seeking t o r e i n s t a t e 
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1 the i n j e c t i o n a u t h o r i t y . We t h i n k we would show t h a t 

2 through the C-108 and other data, Cimarex has s a t i s f i e d 

3 a l l of the D i v i s i o n ' s i n j e c t i o n w e l l requirements. 

4 We w i l l f u r t h e r again, the f i l e -- I was 

5 not provided a copy of i t u n t i l not too long ago. There 

6 i s a l e t t e r t h a t the BLM sent r a i s i n g c e r t a i n 

7 o b j e c t i o n s . We w i l l address those i n the course of 

8 testimony. I 'd r a t h e r not put words i n t o the mouths of 

9 my witnesses, but we w i l l address those. 

10 We also t h i n k i t ' s proper, since the w e l l 

11 had i n j e c t e d f o r 23 years without problems, t h a t the 

12 r e i n s t a t e d i n j e c t i o n a u t h o r i t y be made r e t r o a c t i v e back 

13 t o 1989, and we w i l l again address i n our testimony. 

14 And t h a t ' s a l l I have at t h i s p o i n t , 

15 Mr. Examiner. 

16 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Thank you, Counselor. 

17 Mr. Martin? 

18 MR. MARTIN: Thank you. 

19 OPENING STATEMENT 

20 MR. MARTIN: Ross Ranch i s o b j e c t i n g t o 

21 t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n t o r e i n s t a t e t h i s p a r t i c u l a r i n j e c t i o n 

22 w e l l and p a r t i c u l a r l y o b j e c t i n g t o i t being r e i n s t a t e d 

23 r e t r o a c t i v e l y . 

24 I f I may, I w i l l r e f e r you t o the order 
25 t h a t was entered i n the p r i o r case r e s c i n d i n g the 
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1 a u t h o r i t y , or the order on SWD-380 and, i n p a r t i c u l a r , 

2 i n the order p o r t i o n , subpart thr e e . The D i v i s i o n said: 

3 This order i s without p r e j u d i c e t o the r i d e r [ s i c ] of 

4 the Respondent who f i l e d a p p l i c a t i o n t o r e i n s t a t e 

5 i n j e c t i o n a u t h o r i t y f o r the subject w e l l as a new 

6 a p p l i c a t i o n , accompanied by new Form C-108, w i t h no r i s k 

7 t o the p a r t i e s t o whom no t i c e of a new i n j e c t i o n 

8 a p p l i c a t i o n was requi r e d . 

9 I t i s our p o s i t i o n t h a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

10 order as entered orders and contemplates t h a t t h i s 

11 p a r t i c u l a r -- an a p p l i c a t i o n and a new a p p l i c a t i o n 

12 cannot be t r e a t e d as a reinstatement and c e r t a i n l y 

13 cannot be t r e a t e d on a r e t r o a c t i v e basis. 

14 I have also f i l e d a motion, which y o u - a l l 

15 should have, r e l a t i n g t o t h i s p a r t i c u l a r issue, and I 

16 can e i t h e r p o i n t these out now or at c l o s i n g . But I 

17 t h i n k the most important p a r t of t h i s i s , i f you look at 

18 case law across the United States, when you have a 

19 s i t u a t i o n where an order i s reversed by an appel l a t e 

20 court -- I ' l l use, i n t h i s instance, "withdrawn." But 

21 most of the time you deal w i t h r e v e r s a l s by appe l l a t e 

22 courts. A r e v e r s a l a b s o l u t e l y overthrows or vacates or 

23 annuls or renders t h a t p r i o r order or judgment v o i d . 

24 And i f I may quote from a t r e a t i s t h a t I thought had 

25 p a r t i c u l a r good language, CJS, i t says: "A v o i d " 
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1 order -- "court order i s a complete n u l l i t y and of no 

2 . force and e f f e c t . A v o i d order i s not acceptable on 

3 r a t i f i c a t i o n or c o n f i r m a t i o n . A v o i d order may not 

4 change the sta t u s of a case, and an order which i s a 

5 n u l l i t y and v o i d confers no r i g h t s . Proceedings based 

6 on a v o i d order are themselves i n v a l i d . " 

7 Now, y o u - a l l have t h i s i n the record. I 

8 have c i t e d other a u t h o r i t y , i n c l u d i n g United States 

9 Supreme Court a u t h o r i t y on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r concept. 

10 Very simply, when t h i s p a r t i c u l a r SWD-380 

11 order was revoked, you had a s i t u a t i o n where t h a t t h i n g 

12 became a n u l l i t y . I t was as though nothing had ever 

13 t r a n s p i r e d . I would submit t o you and we w i l l argue 

14 t h a t as a matter of law, even i f there i s a dec i s i o n 

15 made t o allow i n j e c t i o n i n t o t h i s w e l l , which we oppose, 

16 i t cannot as a matter of law be made r e t r o a c t i v e back t o 

17 1989. 

18 Now, other issues involved i n t h i s matter: 

19 A great deal of the data t h a t i s being r e l i e d upon i n 

20 t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n i s data back at the 1988, 1989 time 

21 p e r i o d . Not a l l , c e r t a i n l y , because 1 1ve seen some 

22 : t h i n g s t h a t they have submitted, but a great deal. 

23 I would submit t o you t h a t i t i s wholly 

24 t i n a p p r o p r i a t e t o allow an a u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r an i n j e c t i o n 

25 , w e l l based on data t h a t i s 23 years o l d , and there i s 
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1 not cu r r e n t data. 

2 Also, i f you look i n the record, the BLM 

3 has, i n f a c t , sent you a l e t t e r o b j e c t i n g t o the 

4 issuance of an a u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l . 

5 The BLM has given you some of the reasons why the BLM 

6 o b j e c t s . To date, BLM has not changed i t s p o s i t i o n , as 

7 f a r as we know, on t h a t subject. 

8 I submit t h a t i t i s in a p p r o p r i a t e f o r the 

9 OCD t o go forward and issue an a u t h o r i z a t i o n when, i n 

10 f a c t , the BLM i s o b j e c t i n g and has set f o r t h c r i t e r i a as 

11 t o why they are o b j e c t i n g . 

12 Also, there i s other data and i n f o r m a t i o n 

13 t h a t c l e a r l y shows t h a t t h i s p a r t i c u l a r a p p l i c a t i o n 

14 should be denied. I f Cimarex wants t o proceed w i t h a 

15 new a p p l i c a t i o n on the new form, then i t needs t o come 

16 forward w i t h new, current and adequate data and not 

17 r e l y , i n whole or i n p a r t , on 23-year-old data. I w i l l 

18 stop -- oh, I'm sorry. I d i d leave one t h i n g out. 

19 There i s another i n t e r e s t i n g aspect t o 

20 t h i s . Because t h i s order was v o i d and we have t h i s new 

21 a p p l i c a t i o n , I submit t o you t h a t the Surface Owners 

22 P r o t e c t i o n Act now comes i n t o play, and there has been 

23 a b s o l u t e l y no e f f o r t on the p a r t of Cimarex t o comply 

24 w i t h the Surface Owners P r o t e c t i o n Act. U n t i l there i s 

25 some attempt t h a t complies w i t h the Surface Owners 
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1 P r o t e c t i o n Act, t h a t i s another reason t h a t t h i s 

2 a p p l i c a t i o n should not go forward. My c l i e n t has never 

3 been contacted w i t h any proposal i n r e l a t i o n t o the 

4 Surface Owners P r o t e c t i o n Act. I'm sure there w i l l be 

5 argument t h a t i s i n a p p l i c a b l e . We can argue t h a t out. 

6 We can even b r i e f i t , i f necessary, but i f you look at 

7 the scope and breadth of the Surface Owners P r o t e c t i o n 

8 Act, i t i s my p o s i t i o n t h a t i t picks t h i s s i t u a t i o n up, 

9 and i t has t o be d e a l t w i t h , which i t has not been d e a l t 

10 w i t h . 

11 The other issue i s , there are numerous 

12 water w e l l s w i t h i n the area of t h i s p a r t i c u l a r i n j e c t i o n 

13 w e l l -- proposed i n j e c t i o n w e l l , and, again, there has 

14 not been data provided as t o a l l of those w e l l s . And I 

15 be l i e v e you w i l l not hear any data today w i t h reference 

16 t o those w e l l s , the c o n d i t i o n of water i n those w e l l s , 

17 and, again, t h a t would be a reason t o not proceed 

18 f u r t h e r and deny t h i s p a r t i c u l a r a p p l i c a t i o n . 

19 I have also submitted t o you i n the 

20 e x h i b i t s some f e d e r a l m a t e r i a l s . One of them i s the --

21 what they c a l l the Gold Book. I f you go t o page 38 of 

22 the Gold Book, you w i l l see t h a t i t discusses disposal, 

23 and then i t r e f e r s you t o BLM Onshore Order Number 7, 

24 which I have l i k e w i s e included. And I submit t o you 

25 t h a t there has been no attempt t o comply w i t h those 
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1 p a r t i c u l a r requirements. That has not, per se, been 

2 l i s t e d i n the BLM l e t t e r , but there i s no -- there has 

3 been no attempt t o comply w i t h t h a t . 

4 And w i t h t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , we do have 

5 the BLM involved, and you cannot ignore and not take 

6 i n t o account the p o s i t i o n of the BLM i n r e l a t i o n t o t h i s 

7 p a r t i c u l a r i n j e c t i o n w e l l . 

8 EXAMINER BROOKS: I s t h i s w e l l on Federal 

9 Mineral Estate? 

10 MR. MARTIN: Some of i t . I t ' s s i t t i n g on 

11 p r i v a t e land, but i t a f f e c t s Federal Mineral Estate. 

12 EXAMINER BROOKS: But i t i s not i n the 

13 Federal Mineral Estate? 

14 MR. MARTIN: I t i s not. I t ' s r i g h t on the 

15 edge. 

16 MR. BRUCE: I t i s on Federal Mineral 

17 MR. MARTIN: I t ' s on p r i v a t e . I t ' s on 

18 f e d e r a l minerals, but i t ' s on p r i v a t e surface. 

19 EXAMINER BROOKS: Oh, okay. 

2 0 MR. MARTIN: I d i d n ' t say t h a t very w e l l . 

21 Yes, i t ' s f e d e r a l minerals, so we cannot ignore the BLM 

22 i n t h i s process. 

23 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 
24 MR. MARTIN: That's my opening statement. 

25 Thank you. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
565527f4-ctb9-4e35-a208-55469a800354 



Page 15 
1 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Do you have any 

2 comment? I have some comments. 

3 EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I'm not sure I need 

4 t o make comments at t h i s p o i n t . I could remark t h a t I 

5 don't t h i n k because I believe we probably do not have 

6 j u r i s d i c t i o n t o determine the a p p l i c a b i l i t y of the 

7 Surface Owners P r o t e c t i o n Act, I would t h i n k t h a t as f a r 

8 as t h i s t r i b u n a l i s concerned, t h a t ' s e s s e n t i a l l y a 

9 nonissue, not t h a t i t ' s not something t h a t couldn't be 

10 r a i s e d i n an appropriate t r i b u n a l . That's a p r e l i m i n a r y 

11 o p i n i o n without having heard any arguments t h a t counsel 

12 addressed t o t h a t issue. 

13 MR. BRUCE: I would simply say, 

14 Mr. Examiner, t h a t t h a t i s an agreement between - - a 

15 p r i v a t e agreement between a surface owner and an 

16 operator, o i l and gas operator, but i t does not -- so i f 

17 there i s any issue about t h a t , t h a t ' s between these 

18 p a r t i e s , and i f there i s a squabble over i t , i t ' s i n 

19 d i s t r i c t c o u r t . 

20 EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, t h a t would be my 

21 t h i n k i n g on the subject. 

22 MR. BRUCE: And our p o s i t i o n --go ahead. 

23 EXAMINER BROOKS: I f the surface owner 

24 contends t h a t something cannot be done, even though i t ' s 

25 authorized by the OCD, because they haven't complied 
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1 w i t h the Surface Owners P r o t e c t i o n Act, I would t h i n k 

2 t h a t the remedy would be t o take t h a t t o d i s t r i c t c ourt. 

3 MR. BRUCE: And i t ' s Cimarex's p o s i t i o n 

4 t h a t there i s -- there i s an exclusion i n the Surface 
5 Owners P r o t e c t i o n Act f o r agreements i n place, and since 

6 t h i s w e l l has been out there f o r somewhere around 3 0 

7 years now, we bel i e v e t h a t the Surface Owners P r o t e c t i o n 

8 Act does not apply. But, again, I don't want t o r e a l l y 

9 argue t h a t because we j u s t t h i n k i t ' s a d i s t r i c t court 

10 a c t i o n . 

11 EXAMINER BROOKS: That would be my t h i n k i n g 

12 without having any b r i e f i n g on the subject. 

13 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Anyway, thank you very 

14 much, gentlemen. 

15 I'm the Examiner today, and I'm not here as 

16 an atto r n e y , so I don't understand what you're saying. 

17 I'm here t o c o l l e c t the t e c h n i c a l and engineering f a c t s , 

18 t o make decisions on those f a c t s , and I have an 

19 honorable judge here t o help me w i t h the l e g a l matters. 

20 EXAMINER BROOKS: Formerly honorable. 

21 (Laughter.) 

22 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: But I'm not -- I can 

23 reason, and t h i s i s why I t e l l you I can reason even 

24 though I'm not an att o r n e y . F i r s t of a l l , I don't want 

25 something t h a t would go t o the d i s t r i c t c ourt t o be 
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1 brought here, because I'm l a c k i n g the resources t o be 

2 able t o deal w i t h t h i s on an everyday basis. I f I waste 

3 a l l t h i s time and then hear a l l these cases, you go back 

4 t o d i s t r i c t c o u r t . You see the waste? I hate waste. 

5 I know, Mr. Ma r t i n , you haven't appeared 

6 here before, but a l l these people, they know I don't 

7 l i k e hearings t o go a whole week, and then i t goes back 

8 t o d i s t r i c t c o u r t . A l l t h a t time i s gone. I should 

9 have used t h a t time more e f f e c t i v e l y doing something 

10 else. 

11 Okay. Now, I heard what the two of you 

12 said, and I'm confused, but I can reason. One t h i n g I 

13 wanted t o say here i s , when you are saying -- when 

14 Counsel was saying, We want t h i s t o be r e t r o a c t i v e t o 

15 1989, and you are saying, No, i t can't be made 

16 r e t r o a c t i v e t o 1989, I'm not i n t e r e s t e d . My i n t e r e s t 

17 i s , i s t h i s i n j e c t i o n w e l l viable? So whether i t ' s 

18 r e t r o a c t i v e t o 1989 or not, i s i t something t h a t w i l l go 

19 t o d i s t r i c t court which I don't know why you guys are 

20 asking me not t o do 1989 or do 1989. I mean, you sai d 

21 i t cannot be made r e t r o a c t i v e t o 1989. Okay. Suppose 

22 I -- am I im p a i r i n g the c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s of somebody 

23 i f I make i t r e t r o a c t i v e t o 1989, or i f I do the 

24 opposite, am I i m p a i r i n g c o r r e c t i v e r i g h t s ? 

2 5 Remember, my job here i s t o prevent waste 
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1 and p r o t e c t c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , your c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s . 

2 I'm not an atto r n e y , but I t h i n k you understand where 

3 I'm going, because t h i s w i l l help us f a c i l i t a t e -- you 

4 can understand the l e g a l r a m i f i c a t i o n s . I can't. But 

5 from what you t o l d me now, I want t o f i n d out why --

6 suppose I say, Okay, i t ' s not going t o be r e t r o a c t i v e t o 

7 1989, or, I'm going t o make i t r e t r o a c t i v e t o 1989. So 

8 t h a t ' s what I don't understand. And then i t w i l l be a 

9 burden of contention i n t h i s hearing. 

10 Why we are here i s , i s there any 

11 nego t i a t i o n ? Let's t r y t o see what i s p e r t i n e n t t o an 

12 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e hearing of t h i s nature. This i s not a 

13 d i s t r i c t c o u r t . Okay? That's one t h i n g . 

14 Then you mentioned BLM. BLM w i l l make an 

15 o b j e c t i o n , but they never appear here t o stand up on 

16 t h e i r o b j e c t i o n s . And i t ' s very, very absent [ s i c ] t o 

17 me. I f you are o b j e c t i n g t o something, you need t o 

18 appear and say why you are o b j e c t i n g . You don't j u s t 

19 w r i t e -- anybody can w r i t e and go t o New York and have 

20 fun; then I ' l l be s t r u g g l i n g w i t h i t . We l i s t e n t o 

21 whatever i s said. U n f o r t u n a t e l y , they don't appear t o 

22 t e l l us why they are o b j e c t i n g . Remember what I sai d 

23 before. We want t o c o l l e c t the t e c h n i c a l f a c t s and make 

24 a deci s i o n t h a t w i l l a f f e c t [ s i c ] everybody. And we are 
25 going t o consider everybody's r i g h t s equally. I'm not 
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1 working f o r Smith or f o r Ross Ranch or f o r even Mobil. 

2 I work f o r the State of New Mexico, make sure t h a t 

3 e v e r y t h i n g i s done r i g h t , and t h a t ' s why we are here. I 

4 don't want anything t h a t w i l l go t o d i s t r i c t court be 

5 brought here because I'm not a judge. That's one p o i n t . 

6 So going back t o BLM. BLM never shows up. 

7 We consider e v e r y t h i n g they t e l l us, but OCD has the 

8 a u t h o r i t y t o w r i t e the order. They have the 

9 a u t h o r i t y -- they have the power t o say, Oh, we can't 

10 even comply w i t h t h a t , because t h a t ' s BLM. So i f we 

11 w r i t e an order t h a t i s m a t e r i a l t o them, they have the 

12 r i g h t t o say. Well, I d i d n ' t do whatever they wanted t o 

13 do w i t h the operator. 

14 So because they don't come here t o convince 

15 me what they are doing or do, I w i l l look at t h i s i n the 

16 t e c h n i c a l aspect, but I'm not here t o b o l s t e r t h e i r 

17 outlook on why t h i s should not happen. They s i t back 

18 and then allow me -- I mean, t h a t ' s not r i g h t . I f I 

19 s t a r t doing t h a t , I am not doing my job, j u s t l i s t e n i n g 

2 0 t o whatever they say. Their modus operandi might be 

21 d i f f e r e n t from ours, because we are the State, and 

22 BLM -- and they have d i f f e r e n t operations -- operating 

23 standards. 

24 So we don't want t o l a y too much on BLM, 

25 even though i t has some pertinence t o what we are 
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1 t a l k i n g about. 

2 So w i t h t h i s , I want t o steer c l e a r of 

3 anything t h a t w i l l go t o d i s t r i c t court t o be said here. 

4 I f I see i t , I w i l l cut you o f f from there, and w e ' l l go 

5 t o the r e a l issue t h a t i s before us today, l i k e you t o l d 

6 me. And t h a t ' s why I had req u i r e d you guys t o t e l l me 

7 about t h i s case i n opening statements, so I can make 

8 these comments. 

9 What I want t o do now i s go back t o the 

10 f a c t s of why t h i s should not be r e i n s t a t e d and why i t 

11 should be r e i n s t a t e d . That's a l l the Examiners want t o 

12 hear, unless the Legal Examiner has any other t h i n g t o 

13 say, but t h a t ' s a l l I have. I don't want t o argue 

14 d i s t r i c t court arguments i n an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e hearing. 

15 MR. BRUCE: And, Mr. Examiner, I don't plan 

16 t o . That's why I ' d l i k e t o get going w i t h the evidence. 

17 MR. MARTIN: May I make one response, 

18 please? 

19 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Sure. 

2 0 MR. MARTIN: Thank you. 

21 We have an o b l i g a t i o n t o p r o p e r l y make a 

22 record i n a case, and i t i s our p o s i t i o n t h a t the issues 

23 I r a i s e d i n the opening statement are r e l a t i v e t o what 

24 can or cannot be put i n t o an order r e l a t i n g t o t h i s 

25 p a r t i c u l a r a p p l i c a t i o n . I t i s t r u e t h a t some of t h a t i s 
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1 l e g a l argument, but I submit t o you t h a t t h a t l e g a l 

2 argument and law cannot be ignored i n r e l a t i o n t o t h i s 

3 p a r t i c u l a r issue. 

4 I t i s also c r i t i c a l l y important t h a t we 

5 make a record and we make a proper record because the 

6 process t h a t i s in v o l v e d here, should we disagree w i t h 

7 the u l t i m a t e d e c i s i o n , goes up on a record. I f we have 

8 not made a proper record, then we have not preserved our 

9 p o s i t i o n . Therefore, I r e s p e c t f u l l y disagree. We have 

10 t o present our l e g a l arguments, as w e l l as f a c t u a l 

11 arguments, at t h i s hearing. 

12 EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, of course, I would 

13 r e s p e c t f u l l y p o i n t out t h a t people -- t r i a l lawyers are 

14 very a l e r t t o making a record, but our s e t t i n g i s 

15 somewhat d i f f e r e n t i n t h a t regard from where we normally 

16 f i n d ourselves i n court or even before an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

17 agency because we're i n a hearing context where a 

18 de novo appeal i s allowed. I f e i t h e r of you does not 

19 l i k e the r e s u l t of t h i s hearing, your remedy i s t o 

20 request a de novo review by the f u l l Commission, and at 

21 t h a t time, you w i l l have the o p p o r t u n i t y t o present 

22 anything t h a t the Commission chooses t o allow you t o 

23 present. 

24 And the record t h a t w i l l go t o d i s t r i c t 

25 c o u r t , i f t h i s case ever goes t o d i s t r i c t c o u r t , w i l l be 
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1 the record of the Commission hearing, not the record of 

2 t h i s hearing. Records of the examiner hearings are 

3 u s u a l l y not even included i n what i s c e r t i f i e d t o the 

4 d i s t r i c t c o u r t . 

5 However, I don't t h i n k Mr. Ezeanyim or I 

6 want t o preclude you from making any l e g a l argument. I f 

7 you o f f e r evidence t h a t ' s not re l e v a n t t o what we see as 

8 the issues before us, we may s u s t a i n an o b j e c t i o n , i f 

9 there i s one, t o t h a t evidence, but we're not going t o 

10 decline t o all o w you t o make any l e g a l argument you wish 

11 t o make. 

12 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Martin, t h a t ' s not 

13 my i n t e n t . I'm s o r r y i f you misunderstood me. You have 

14 the r i g h t t o say -- t h a t ' s why i t ' s a hearing, you know. 

15 You have the r i g h t t o say whatever you want t o . I mean, 

16 I d i d n ' t say, Well, you can't -- no. You've got t o 

17 p r o t e c t -- you have t o work f o r your c l i e n t . You have 

18 t o be ambitious t o work f o r your c l i e n t . I never want 

19 t o exclude you from saying anything t h a t might be 

20 b e n e f i c i a l t o you, but I'm j u s t t r y i n g t o make sure we 

21 exclude anything t h a t i s not r e a l l y necessary. Because 

22 even though I'm not an att o r n e y , l i k e I said, I can --

23 you are going from what your r i g h t s are i n t h i s 

24 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e hearing. That's a l l I'm saying. 

25 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah. The d i f f e r e n c e 
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1 I would add, the d i f f e r e n c e t h a t we may make, because 

2 i t ' s an Examiner Hearing r a t h e r than a j u d i c i a l 

3 proceeding, i s t h a t i f we exclude evidence, we may not 

4 be -- we may be i n c l i n e d not t o make a B i l l of 

5 Exception, because I don't see the p o i n t t h a t a B i l l of 

6 Exception would serve when t h i s proceeding a review 

7 of t h i s proceeding i s going t o be done de novo and w e ' l l 

8 w i l l have the o p p o r t u n i t y t o present whatever evidence 

9 or r e j e c t t o the Commission i f you take t h i s case t o the 

10 Commission. 

11 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: I n l e g a l terms, please 

12 what i s Gold Book? Gold Book was mentioned. I'm not 

13 f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t . 

14 EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, the Gold Book i s a 

15 book t h a t i s prepared by the BLM t h a t has t o do w i t h 

16 surface usage --

17 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Oh, okay. 

18 EXAMINER BROOKS - - b y o i l and gas 

19 operators. I t h i n k j u s t about anybody can use t h i s BLM 

20 serv i c e , although I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h i t s p r o v i s i o n s . 

21 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. I t was 

22 mentioned, but I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t . 

23 Okay. Very good. Now I t h i n k I have heard 

24 everything, and we can proceed. 

25 
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2 a f t e r having been p r e v i o u s l y sworn under oath, was 

3 questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

4 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

5 BY MR. BRUCE: 

6 Q. Please s t a t e your name and c i t y of residence 

7 

8 

f o r the record. 

A. Nash Dowdle, Midland, Texas. 

9 Q. Who do you work f o r and i n what capacity? 

10 A. Cimarex Energy, as a landman. 

11 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

12 Divison? 

13 A. Yes, s i r . 

14 Q. And were your c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert 

15 petroleum landman accepted as a matter of record? 

16 A. Yes, s i r . 

17 Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the land matters 

18 involved i n t h i s case? 

19 A. Yes, s i r . 

20 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I tender 

21 Mr. Dowdle as an expert petroleum landman. 

22 MR. MARTIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr.. Dowdle i s so 

24 q u a l i f i e d . 

25 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) Mr. Dowdle, could you i d e n t i f y 
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1 E x h i b i t 1 f o r the Examiner and b r i e f l y describe i t s 

2 contents? 

3 A. This shows two t h i n g s here. The red o u t l i n e i s 

4 the Ross Ranch surface area, and the other area t h a t ' s 

5 green and hash marks shows the f e d e r a l lease w i t h our 

6 w e l l s on i t . 

7 Q. Now, there are c e r t a i n -- the green area i s the 

8 f e d e r a l lease. What does the yellow cross-hatching 

9 i n d i c a t e ? 

10 A. That j u s t shows the p r o r a t i o n u n i t s t h a t are 

11 allowable t o those producing w e l l s . 

12 Q. And those are operated by Cimarex? 

13 A. Correct. 

14 Q. Now, l e t ' s take a -- w e l l , l e t ' s move on t o 

15 E x h i b i t -- oh, and t h i s also -- i n the lower, r i g h t 

16 p o r t i o n of the designated Ross Ranch, i t says f e d e r a l --

17 "Amoco Federal #1 SWD w e l l . " I s t h a t the s a l t w a t e r 

18 disposal w e l l we're here about today? 

19 A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

20 Q. And i n s o f a r as disposal i n t o t h a t w e l l , i s i t 

21 only Cimarex w e l l s from t h i s lease t h a t are c o n t r i b u t i n g 

22 t o disposal at t h a t well? 

23 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

24 Q. So i t ' s only on lease water? 

25 A. Correct. 
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1 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 2? 

2 A. E x h i b i t 2 i s the S e r i a l Register Page t h a t 

3 shows a h i s t o r y of the lease t h a t ' s involved w i t h the 

4 Amoco f e d e r a l lease. 

5 Q. H i g h l i g h t e d i s some acreage. What does the 

6 h i g h l i g h t e d acreage i n d i c a t e ? 

7 A. I t i n d i c a t e s the areas t h a t we a c t u a l l y operate 

8 and have w e l l s on. 

9 Q. Now, when you say "we," Cimarex Energy Company 

10 of Colorado i s the operator, correct? 

11 A. Correct. 

12 Q. Do they operate on behalf of another e n t i t y ? 

13 A. No. 

14 Q. No, no. I mean, who owns -- who i s the a c t u a l 

15 owner of the lease? Which company? 

16 A. That would be -- w e l l , i f you look at the 

17 lessee, i t ' s Occidental Permian. 

18 Q. No, no, Mr. Dowdle. 

19 A. Sorry. 

20 Q. Who owns the -- l e t ' s move t o E x h i b i t 3. 

21 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: No, i t would s t i l l be 

22 Number 2. 

23 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) Well, l e t ' s move t o E x h i b i t 3 

24 b r i e f l y . What i s E x h i b i t 3? 

25 A. E x h i b i t 3 i s an assignment of b i l l of sale from 
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Mallon O i l Company t o Magnum Hunter. 

2 Q. Now, the SWD order was o r i g i n a l l y obtained by 

3 Mallon O i l Company? 

4 A. Correct. 

5 Q. And they assigned t h e i r i n t e r e s t i n t h i s 

6 p a r t i c u l a r f e d e r a l lease and other leases t o Magnum 

7 Hunter by t h i s assignment, correct? 

8 A. Yes, s i r . 

9 Q. And what year was t h a t assignment executed? 

10 A. That was i n 2005. 

11 Q. Does Magnum Hunter Production, Inc. s t i l l own 

12 the leasehold? 

13 A. Yes, they do, as f a r as --

14 Q. And Cimarex operates on t h e i r behalf? 

15 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

16 Q. So Cimarex operates on behalf of Magnum Hunter? 

17 A. Yes, s i r . That's c o r r e c t . 

18 Q. And, again, l o o k i n g at page 4 of the 

19 assignment, when was t h i s assignment e f f e c t i v e ? 

20 A. I t was e f f e c t i v e the f i r s t day of J u l y -- i t 

21 was executed and e f f e c t i v e the f i r s t day of July 2001. 

22 Q. Now -- so Magnum Hunter -- E x h i b i t 2, the 

23 S e r i a l Register Page from the f e d e r a l government, i n 

24 t h a t f e d e r a l lease, Magnum Hunter s t i l l owns the 

25 leasehold i n t e r e s t 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
565527f4-c1 b9-4e35-a208-55469a800354 



1 A. 
Page 28 

Correct. 

2 Q. -- t h a t we're concerned about today? 

3 A. That 1s c o r r e c t . 

4 Q. That's a l l I was g e t t i n g a t on t h a t one. 

5 Now, when d i d Cimarex Energy Company come 

6 i n t o being? 

7 A. 2002 . 

8 Q. Did Cimarex Energy Company l a t e r acquire Magnum 

9 Hunter Production, Inc.? 

10 A. Yes, s i r . 

11 Q. I n what year? 

12 A. 2005 . 

13 Q. So Mallon O i l Company operated t h i s lease f o r a 

14 pe r i o d of time, and then i t was purchased by Magnum 

15 Hunter Production? 

16 A. Correct. 

17 Q. And Magnum Hunter Production was separate from 

18 Cimarex f o r several years t h e r e a f t e r ? 

19 A. Yes, s i r . That's c o r r e c t . 

20 Q. So i t ' s a s i s t e r company of Cimarex or a 

21 subsidiary? 

22 A. I t ' s a wholly owned su b s i d i a r y . 

23 Q. And Magnum Hunter independently operated the 

24 w e l l s now operated by Cimarex f o r several years? 

25 A. Correct. 
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Mr. Dowdle, there have been some comments here 

2 about water w e l l s . What i s E x h i b i t 4? 

3 A. E x h i b i t 4 shows the w e l l s on .the Ross Ranch, as 

4 • w e l l as the water w e l l s t h a t I found i n the State 

5 Engineer's O f f i c e records. 

6 Q. Did you prepare t h i s p l a t t o show the l o c a t i o n 

7 of a l l the freshwater w e l l s i n t h i s immediate area? 

8 A. I d i d , yes, s i r . 

9 Q. Off t o the east of the SWD w e l l , you have a BLM 

10 Sample Well i d e n t i f i e d . Was a water sample taken from 

11 t h a t well? 

12 A. Yes, s i r . 

13 Q- And w i l l our engineer discuss t h a t water 

14 sample? 

15 A. Yes, s i r . 

16 Q. The we l l s on the Ross Ranch, d i d Cimarex 

17 request permission t o take water samples from those 

18 wells? 

19 A. Yes, we d i d . 

20 Q. Were you able t o take water samples from those 

21 wells? 

22 A. We were not. 

23 Q. Why i s that? 

24 A. I understand, from our r e c o l l e c t i o n , t h a t Ross 

25 Ranch denied us -- d i d not allow us t o get those 
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1 samples. 

2 Q. They requested t h a t you not take any samples 

3 from those wells? 

4 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

5 Q. Next, what i s E x h i b i t 5? 

6 A. E x h i b i t 5 i s our a c t u a l p i c t u r e of the SWD i n 

7 question. 

8 Q. And the w e l l does have an assignment as 

9 r e q u i r e d by OCD r u l e s ; does i t not? 

10 A. Yes, s i r . 

11 Q. I t looks l i k e there i s a Cimarex Energy Company 

12 tag on t h a t -- name tag on t h a t , but i t looks l i k e i t ' s 

13 over the name of Mallon O i l Company? 

14 A. Correct. 

15 Q. So t h a t sign has been out there f o r q u i t e some 

16 time? 

17 A. Yes, i t has. 

18 Q. Now, lo o k i n g a t t h i s , o f f t o the l e f t , there i s 

19 a w i n d m i l l . What i s that? 

20 A. That's the w i n d m i l l t h a t we have the sample 

21 from. 

22 Q. That's the -- i t ' s on f e d e r a l land, and you 

23 took a sample from t h a t --

24 A. Correct. 

25 Q. - - o r Cimarex did? 
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1 A. Correct. 

2 Q. And d i d Cimarex n o t i f y the BLM and request 

3 t h e i r permission t o take a sample from t h a t well? 

4 A. Yes, we d i d . 

5 Q. Were you pe r s o n a l l y involved i n that? 

6 A. Yes, I was. 

7 Q. Next, what i s E x h i b i t -- l e t ' s take a step 

8 back. When Cimarex buys p r o p e r t i e s , do they g e n e r a l l y 

9 take possession of the w e l l f i l e s from p r i o r operators? 

10 A. Yes, they do. 

11 Q. And d i d you check those w e l l f i l e s t o see i f 

12 there was any i n f o r m a t i o n regarding an agreement w i t h 

13 the surface owner regarding use of the surface f o r t h i s 

14 well? 

15 A. I d i d . 

16 Q. And what i s E x h i b i t 6? 

17 A. E x h i b i t 6 j u s t n o t i f i e s t h a t Worth Petroleum, 

18 who was the i n i t i a l -- t h a t d r i l l e d the a c t u a l f i r s t 

19 w e l l , the Amoco Fed w e l l , t h a t they -- i t j u s t states t o 

2 0 the Bureau of Land Management t h a t they d i d indeed 

21 contact Ross Ranch at t h a t time. 

2 2 Q. And d i d you check the records t o determine what 

23 p a r t i e s -- what i n t e r e s t owners should be n o t i f i e d of 

24 the C-108 i n t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? What p a r t i e s should be 

25 n o t i f i e d of t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? Did you check the records 
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of the o f f s e t operators, e t cetera? 

2 A. At t h a t time, i n 1983? 

3 Q. No, no, no, no. I'm t a l k i n g --

4 A. Yes, I d i d . I'm so r r y . 

5 Q. I'm t a l k i n g about t h i s s p r i n g . 

6 A. Correct, I d i d . 

7 Q- And i s E x h i b i t 7 a l i s t i n g of a l l o f f s e t 

8 operators and surface owners i n the area of review --

9 A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

10 Q. - - o f the SWD well? 

11 A. Correct. 

12 MR. BRUCE: And, Mr. Examiner, E x h i b i t 8 i s 

13 simply my A f f i d a v i t of Notice of the a previous 

14 n o t i c e was sent out, but since t h i s was set f o r a 

15 s p e c i a l hearing, we sent out n o t i c e of the spe c i a l 

16 hearing date, and t h a t i s E x h i b i t 8. And a l l of the 

17 o f f s e t s d i d receive a c t u a l n o t i c e . 

18 Q- (BY MR. BRUCE) Mr. Dowdle, were E x h i b i t s 1 

19 through 7 prepared by you or under your supervision? 

20 A. Yes, s i r , they were. 

21 Q. Was E x h i b i t 6 obtained from the business f i l e s 

22 maintained by Cimarex? 

23 A. Yes, s i r , i t was. 

24 Q. And i n your o p i n i o n , i s the g r a n t i n g of t h i s 

25 a p p l i c a t i o n i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation and the 
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1 prevention of waste? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I'd move the 

4 admission of E x h i b i t s 1 through 8. 

5 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: No objection? Any 

6 obj ection? 

7 MR. MARTIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

8 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: E x h i b i t s 1 through 8 

9 w i l l be admitted. 

10 (Cimarex Energy Company of Colorado E x h i b i t 

11 Numbers 1 through 8 were o f f e r e d and 

12 admitted i n t o evidence.) 

13 MR. BRUCE: Pass the witness. 

14 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Martin? 

15 MR. MARTIN: Thank you. 

16 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR. MARTIN: 

18 Q. Mr. Dowdle, you made a statement a t the 

19 beginning of your testimony t h a t a l l of the water t h a t 

20 has gone i n t o t h i s p a r t i c u l a r disposal w e l l has come 

21 from w e l l s t h a t Cimarex i s operating. Do you r e c a l l 

22 t h a t testimony? 

23 A. Yes, s i r . 

24 Q. Are you saying t h a t i s a c o r r e c t statement f o r 

25 the past 23 or 24 years? 
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1 A. I can't say t h a t f o r sure, but I b e l i e v e so 

2 from what I've found. 

3 Q. You do not have personal, f i r s t h a n d knowledge 

4 as t o what has been put i n t h a t w e l l and from what 

5 source, do you? 

6 A. I j u s t know from the l a s t operated i t ' s been 

7 water. 

8 Q. Have you p e r s o n a l l y been out at t h a t w e l l s i t e 

9 and monitored on a d a i l y basis sources of the water 

10 coming i n t o t h a t well? 

11 A. No, s i r , I have not. 

12 Q. You are r e l y i n g , then, upon what someone else 

13 has t o l d you; i s t h a t c orrect? 

14 A. Yes, s i r . 

15 Q. There does not even e x i s t records, does there, 

16 Mr. Dowdle, t h a t would r e f l e c t a l l of the sources of 

17 water coming i n t o t h a t w e l l , i s there? 

18 A. I'm not sure. 

19 Q. So the testimony you gave i s simply hearsay and 

20 your o p i n i o n , i s n ' t i t ? 

21 A. I do know t h a t a t one p o i n t we d i d shut down 

22 a l l the w e l l s and t r y t o f i g u r e out where the water was 

23 coming from, and no o f f s e t lease water was coming i n t o 

24 the area [ s i c ] , from what I understand from our 

25 engineers. 
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1 Q. But my question, s i r , was: You cannot s i t here 

2 today and say -- the op i n i o n you have given i s p u r e l y 

3 your o p i n i o n without any -- without any -- without any 

4 d i r e c t basis, and i t ' s hearsay, i s n ' t i t ? 

5 A. I t ' s -- I guess so, yes, s i r . 

6 Q. Do you not t h i n k i t would be important t o know 

7 a l l of the sources of water t h a t have gone i n t o t h a t 

8 well? 

9 A. Yes, s i r . 

10 Q. Do you not t h i n k t h a t would have some d i r e c t 

11 impact on whether or not t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n should or 

12 should not be granted, i f there are sources of water 

13 going i n t o t h a t w e l l other than Cimarex? 

14 A. I b e l i e v e so, yes. 

15 Q. E x h i b i t Number 5, which was the photograph --

16 A. Yes, s i r . 

17 Q. -- you r e f e r r e d t o a w i n d m i l l t h a t would be 

18 over i n the -- not q u i t e upper, l e f t - h a n d side, but 

19 center. l e f t - h a n d side of the photograph. You i n d i c a t e d 

20 t h a t was the w e l l on BLM land from which a water sample 

21 was taken. 

22 A. Yes, s i r . 

23 Q- Do you know the depth of t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

24 w i n d m i l l well? 

25 A. No, s i r , I don't. 
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1 Q. Do you know the water-column l e v e l ? 

2 A. No, s i r , I don't. 

3 Q. Do you know how t h a t p a r t i c u l a r water-column 

4 l e v e l or water l e v e l would c o r r e l a t e w i t h the other 

5 we l l s t h a t would be on the Ross Ranch property? 

6 A. No, s i r , I don't. 

7 Q. Would you agree, then, s i r , t h a t simply because 

8 you ran one sample on a w i n d m i l l w e l l and you do not 

9 know the depth of the w e l l and you do not know the l e v e l 

10 of water column, t h a t t h a t may or may not have any 

11 relevance t o what's happening w i t h the other w e l l s on 

12 the Ross Ranch t h a t are freshwater wells? 

13 MR. BRUCE: I ' d obje c t t o the f a c t t h a t he 

14 never t e s t i f i e d t o t h a t . He simply s a i d t h i s was a w e l l 

15 t h a t the water sample was taken from. 

16 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah. The question 

17 was -- I don't t h i n k t h a t would be, also, w i t h i n t h i s 

18 witness' area of ex p e r t i s e . He's a land person. I 

19 would advise the Examiner t o su s t a i n the o b j e c t i o n . 

20 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Objection sustained. 
21 Q. (BY MR. MARTIN) Let me ask i t t h i s way, i f I 

22 may, then. 

23 EXAMINER BROOKS: Oh, you may. You may 

24 rephrase. 

25 Q. (BY MR. MARTIN) Mr. Dowdle, you r e a l l y d o n ' t 
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1 have the i n f o r m a t i o n and the knowledge t o t e l l us 

2 whether the water from t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l and the 

3 sample t h a t was taken would n e c e s s a r i l y be r e f l e c t i v e of 

4 the c o n d i t i o n of the water i n the other w e l l s t h a t are 

5 near or adjacent t o the proposed dis p o s a l well? 

6 A. I can't say t h a t because I'm not an engineer. 

7 Q. Turn, i f you would, s i r , t o E x h i b i t 6. 

8 A. Yes, s i r . 

9 Q. Now, i f I understood your testimony c o r r e c t l y , 

10 you i n d i c a t e d -- i f I've not phrased i t c o r r e c t l y , 

11 please t e l l me. But you i n d i c a t e d t h i s would r e f l e c t 

12 some k i n d of agreement between then George -- J. G. 

13 Ross surface owner and Worth Petroleum Company? 

14 A. Yes, s i r . 

15 Q. I do not see anywhere on t h i s document t h a t 

16 J . G. Ross signed o f f on t h i s approving i t . 

17 A. Correct. 

18 Q. So we have no signed agreement from J. G. Ross, 

19 do we? 

2 0 A. We do not. 

21 Q. You don't know whether he agreed t o t h i s or d i d 

22 not agree t o i t , do you? 

23 A. I do not. Correct. 

24 Q. Fur the r , t h i s p e r t a i n s t o the o r i g i n a l o i l 

25 w e l l , does i t no t , and does not p e r t a i n t o t h i s 
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1 p a r t i c u l a r disposal well? 

2 A. Yes, s i r . Correct. 

3 Q. So t h i s r e a l l y has no relevance t o the issue, 

4 does i t ? 

5 A. No, s i r . 

6 MR. MARTIN: That's a l l . Pass the witness. 

7 Thank you. 

8 .EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Thank you, Mr. Martin. 

9 Redirect? 

10 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

11 BY MR. BRUCE: 

12 Q. Just one question regarding E x h i b i t 6, 

13 Mr. Dowdle. Have you found anywhere i n the f i l e s 

14 where -- u n t i l j u s t r e c e n t l y , where Mr. Ross or the 

15 p r i o r owners ever f i l e d any o b j e c t i o n t o the use of t h i s 

16 water as a sa l t w a t e r disposal? 

17 A. I have not. Correct. 

18 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, 

19 Mr. Examiner. 

20 MR. MARTIN: I have one question on 

21 recross, i f I may. 

22 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Yeah, go ahead. 

23 MR. MARTIN: Thank you. 

24 

25 
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RECROSS EXAMINATION 

2 BY MR. MARTIN: 

3 Q. I n r e l a t i o n t o the question t h a t was j u s t asked 

4 you, you don't know whom had knowledge of the existence 

5 of t h i s s a l t w a t e r disposal w e l l , do you? 

6 A. No, I do not. 

7 Can I say one thing? 

8 MR. BRUCE: That's i t . 

9 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Do you have any 

10 questions? 

11 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yes. 

12 CROS S-EXAMINATION 

13 BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

14 Q. When you sai d t h a t a l l of the water i n j e c t e d 

15 i n t o t h i s w e l l w i t h i n the years t h a t you've been 

16 f a m i l i a r w i t h i t -- and how long i s that? 

17 A. Three years w i t h Cimarex. 

18 Q. When you sai d t h a t a l l the water t h a t was 

19 i n j e c t e d i n t o i t was from Cimarex, I assume t h a t --

20 would i t be c o r r e c t f o r me t o assume t h a t you could have 

21 reviewed some records t h a t tend t o i n d i c a t e that? What 

22 i s the basis of your knowledge? 

23 A. No, s i r . That's from what I've been t o l d . 

24 I t ' s b a s i c a l l y hearsay from our engineers. 

25 Q. Okay. So i t i s hearsay? 
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1 A. Yes, s i r . That 1s what I understand. 

2 Q. And when you're t a l k i n g about being from 

3 Cimarex, Cimarex has a l o t of w e l l s i n a l o t of places. 

4 A. Yes, s i r . 

5 Q. I s i t a l l from -- does the i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t you 

6 have i n d i c a t e i t ' s a l l from t h i s p a r t i c u l a r lease? 

7 A. Correct. 

8 Q. Okay. Thank you. That's a l l I have. 

9 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: I know we have a 

10 g e o l o g i s t who can answer some questions. I t h i n k the 

11 g e o l o g i s t would know about t h i s w e l l . 

12 EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, as f a r as the water 

13 q u a l i t y i s concerned, I would not assume t h i s witness 

14 knows anything about i t . 

15 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

16 BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM: 

17 Q. One t h i n g I want t o q u a l i f y . Let's s t a r t w i t h 

18 E x h i b i t Number 6. I mean, Mr. M a r t i n asked you whether 

19 Ross Ranch signed o f f on t h i s . But there i s a time 

20 here. One of the t h i n g s I saw i s t h a t , you know, Ross 

21 Ranch d i d n ' t own t h i s surface u n t i l some time, and 

22 Cimarex d i d n ' t own t h i s w e l l u n t i l some time. For my 

23 consumption [ s i c ] , I would l i k e t o know the f o l l o w i n g 

24 f a c t s . When d i d Cimarex become successor of t h i s w e l l 

25 from -- i s i t Mallon? Does Mallon O i l own Honda? 
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1 A. I'm sorry? 

2 Q. Mallon Oil? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. I s i t the same as Honda? 

5 A. No. I t was -- i t was a separate company. 

6 Q. Okay. But I see you w r i t i n g "Mallon 

7 Oil/Honda," so I don't know whether they are the same 

8 company. 

9 MR. BRUCE: I f I could, j u s t t o c l a r i f y , 

10 Mr. Examiner. 

11 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

12 BY MR. BRUCE: 

13 Q. The o r i g i n a l operator of the SWD w e l l was 

14 Mallon O i l Company, correct? 

15 A. ( I n d i c a t i n g . ) 

16 EXAMINER BROOKS: Please answer audibly. 

17 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) And Mallon s o l d t o Magnum 

18 Hunter? 

19 A. Yes. They so l d t o Magnum Hunter i n 2001. 

20 CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION 

21 BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM: 

22 Q. Okay. So you became the successor operator of 

23 t h i s Amoco #1 i n 2001? 

24 A. No, s i r . 

25 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, l e t me c l a r i f y 
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2 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. I want t o have 

3 the i n f o r m a t i o n . 

4 REDIRECT EXAMINATION -

5 BY MR. BRUCE: 

6 Q. Magnum Hunter was not associated w i t h Cimarex 

7 i n 2001? 

8 A. Correct. 

9 Q. Cimarex d i d n ' t e x i s t u n t i l when? 

10 A. 2002 . 

11 Q. When d i d Cimarex buy Magnum Hunter? 

12 A. 2005 . 

13 Q. So Cimarex d i d n ' t operate these w e l l s u n t i l 

14 2 0 0 5; i s t h a t correct? 

15 A. Yes, s i r . 

16 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: That's what I want t o 

17 hear. 

18 CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION 

19 BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM: 

20 Q. So you s t a r t e d operating t h i s w e l l i n 2005, 

21 r i g h t ? 

22 A. Yes, s i r . 

23 Q. But the w e l l up t o t h a t p o i n t was operated by 

24 Mallon Oil ? 

25 A. No, Magnum Hunter. 
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1 MR. BRUCE: And Mallon O i l . 

2 Q. (BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM) Oh, okay. See why I'm 

3 confused? Okay. 

4 A. I ' m sorry. I'm sorry. 

5 Q. Magnum Hunter and Mallon O i l or whatever they 

6 are. Okay. Keeping t h a t i n mind, go back t o E x h i b i t 

7 Number 6. You s t a r t e d o p erating t h i s w e l l i n 2005. 

8 E x h i b i t Number 6 was done March 31, 1983. Mr. Martin 

9 asked you -- I can't ask Ross Ranch because they are not 

10 on the stand, but I would l i k e t o know when Ross Ranch 

11 became the surface owner of t h i s surface, because I 

12 don't t h i n k they were here i n 1989 when t h i s w e l l was 

13 approved t o be n o t i f i e d . I know t h a t d u r i n g the opening 

14 statement, the counselor s a i d t h a t Mallon f a i l e d t o give 

15 the previous surface owner -- who i s the previous 

16 surface owner? Does anybody know? And then when d i d 

17 Ross Ranch become the surface owner of t h i s , because 

18 there are t i m e l i n e s I'm t r y i n g t o mark out here t h a t 

19 w i l l be very, very important, which I can --

2 0 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah. I t h i n k i t would 

21 be appropriate f o r counsel t o respond. I do not expect 

22 t h a t t h i s w i l l be a disputed issue. 

23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Yeah, i t wouldn't. 

24 MR. MARTIN: I f I may, I w i l l give you the 

25 answer, but also I w i l l r e f e r you t o the s t i p u l a t e d set 
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1 of f a c t s i n Case 14888, which gives t h a t h i s t o r y . 

2 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah, I remember you went 

3 i n t o i t b r i e f l y . I don't remember the --

4 MR. MARTIN: That's c o r r e c t . 

5 This land -- the surface of t h i s land was 

6 o r i g i n a l l y acquired by J. G. Ross. 

7 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: In? 

8 MR. MARTIN: 1961. 

9 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Oh, 1961. 

10 MR. MARTIN: Yes. And Mr. Ross died, and 

11 t h i s has gone through a ser i e s of h e i r s and i s now i n 

12 the name of the Ross Ranch, the LLC. That i s a very 

13 quick summary of t h a t . 

14 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. 1961. That 

15 would i n d i c a t e t h a t Cimarex or Mallon gave no t i c e t o 

16 George Ross i n 1989 --

17 MR. MARTIN: Correct. 

18 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: -- becasue there i s 

19 no -- there i s no two surface owners. I t ' s s t i l l George 

20 Ross, who d i d n ' t get n o t i c e i n 1989; i s t h a t correct? 

21 Everybody knows t h a t . 

22 MR. MARTIN: That's c o r r e c t . 

23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: That's what I want t o 

24 know. 
25 MR. BRUCE: I t was e i t h e r Mr. Ross or h i s 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
565527f4-c1b9-4e35-a208-55469a800354 



Page 45 

1 h e i r s . 

2 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. I was t h i n k i n g 

3 t h a t XYZ owned t h a t before George Ross bought i t a f t e r 

4 1989. So i n 1989, George Ross f a i l e d t o get not i c e of 

5 t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n from whoever i n i t i a t e d the sal t w a t e r 

6 disposal a p p l i c a t i o n , r i g h t ? 

7 MR. MARTIN: That i s c o r r e c t . 

8 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. I want t o make 

9 sure t h i s i s undisputed. 

10 MR. MARTIN: I t i s . 

11 Again, without g e t t i n g too redundant here, 

12 t h a t whole h i s t o r y i s a set of s t i p u l a t e d f a c t s , and the 

13 case i s 14888. 

14 MR. BRUCE: E i t h e r Mr. Martin or I w i l l 

15 provide a copy of t h a t t o you a f t e r the hearing. 

16 MR. MARTIN: Yes, i f you need a copy. 

17 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: A copy of what? 

18 MR. BRUCE: I t was a s t i p u l a t i o n of f a c t s 

19 among the p a r t i e s regarding surface ownership. 

20 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. I'm not going t o 

21 press i t . 

22 MR. BRUCE: I t ' s a l l set f o r t h i n t h e r e . 

23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Tha t ' s a l l I need t o 

24 know. I t h i n k I ' v e got a l l the i n f o r m a t i o n . Let me go 

25 back t o the land person. I ' m s o r r y I had t o go through 
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1 t h a t , because i t ' s r e a l l y important f o r me. I thought 

2 somebody else owned the surface before Ross Ranch. 

3 EXAMINER BROOKS: I t ' s another l e g a l e n t i t y 

4 but the same f a m i l y . 

5 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Yeah. Okay. 

6 I need t o ask Mr. Dowdle t h i s question, but 

7 you do have a g e o l o g i s t . 

8 Q. (BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM) When you t e s t i f i e d t h a t 

9 George Ross Ranch denied access t o you of t a k i n g samples 

10 from t h e i r water w e l l s , d i d you ask appropriately? What 

11 d i d you ask? Did you ever t r y t o do t h a t , or i s the 

12 g e o l o g i s t going t o answer t h a t question? 

13 A. No, s i r . I d i d not p e r s o n a l l y ask. I t was my 

14 supervisor; my boss asked. 

15 Q. So maybe the g e o l o g i s t w i l l t a l k about i t , 

16 because i f you're e n t i t l e d t o do t h a t -- I don't know, 

17 l e g a l l y , whether you are e n t i t l e d t o do t h a t or not. I f 

18 you are t r y i n g t o do work and you're not allowed access 

19 t o do t h a t , I don't know how i t a f f e c t s you here. 

2 0 But l e t ' s leave t h a t . I don't want t o go 

21 there now because I don't want t o waste more time? 

22 Let's go t o E x h i b i t Number 7. Number 7 

23 here i s -- the only surface owner i s George Ross, who 

24 acquired t h a t ranch i n 1961. I t ' s very important t o me. 

25 Then the r e s t -- I mean a working i n t e r e s t , r i g h t ? A l l 
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1 these are operators w i t h i n a h a l f mile of t h a t i n j e c t i o n 

2 w e l l , r i g h t ? 

3 A. I'm sorry, I'm t r y i n g t o f i n d the e x h i b i t . 

4 Q. E x h i b i t Number 7. 

5 You gave n o t i c e t o t h i s operators, r i g h t ? 

6 A. Yes, s i r , we d i d . 

7 Q. Now, what -- apart from BLM, who i s o b j e c t i n g 

8 besides George Ross Ranch, the surface owner? How many 

9 of these operators are w i t h i n a h a l f mile t o your 

10 i n j e c t i o n i n t o t h i s well? 

11 A. I be l i e v e they a l l are. 

12 MR. BRUCE: No. 

13 A. I'm sor r y . I d i d n ' t understand the question. 

14 MR. BRUCE: No. There has been no 

15 o b j e c t i o n s received from the o f f s e t operators. 

16 THE WITNESS: I'm sor r y . 

17 Q. (BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM) You answered i n the 

18 negative. 

19 So -- one, two, three, f o u r , f i v e , a l l of 

20 them. There i s no o b j e c t i o n , r i g h t ? 

21 MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

22 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Except from the surface 

23 owner? 

24 MR. BRUCE: Tha t ' s c o r r e c t . 

25 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: We are here because 
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1 by Mallon O i l i n 1989? 

2 MR. BRUCE: ( I n d i c a t i n g . ) 

3 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. Good. See, i t ' s 

4 coming back t o me now. So when you guys s t a r t arguing, 

5 then I know where I'm coming from. 

6 So I'm not going t o ask you other questions 

7 because I know you can't give me the depth of those 

8 water w e l l s . You can't give me you know, the 

9 g e o l o g i s t can give me the depth of those w e l l s and the 

10 i n t e r v a l and a l l kinds of t h i n g s , because I don't 

11 t h i n k -- i t would be something f o r me t o be asking a 

12 g e o l o g i s t , since you have a g e o l o g i s t . That's h i s work. 

13 He has t o earn h i s money. 

14 So anyway, l e t me see i f I have anything 

15 else here f o r you. Most of them are engineering. 

16 You may be excused. 

17 THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

18 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: C a l l your next witness. 

19 MR. BRUCE: C a l l Mr. Pearcy. 

2 0 DAVID PEARCY, 

21 a f t e r having been p r e v i o u s l y sworn under oath, was 

22 questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Pearcy, you are 

24 s t i l l under oath. 

25 THE WITNESS: Okay. I'm David Pearcy, 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
565527f4-c1b9-4e35-a208-55469a800354 



1 g e o l o g i s t . 
Page 49 

2 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

3 BY MR. BRUCE: 

4 Q. Mr. Pearcy, where do you reside? 

5 A. Midland, Texas. 

6 Q. Who do you work f o r and i n what capacity? 

7 

8 

A. I work f o r Cimarex as a g e o l o g i s t . 

Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

9 Div i s i o n ? 

10 A. Yes, I have. 

11 Q. And have your c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert 

12 petroleum g e o l o g i s t been accepted as a matter of record? 

13 A. Yes, they were. 

14 Q. And does your area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y at Cimarex 

15 include t h i s p o r t i o n of southeast New Mexico? 

16 A. Yes, I'm involved i n southeast New Mexico. 

17 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the geology involved i n 

18 t h i s case? 

19 A. Yes, I am. 

20 MR. BRUCE: I tender Mr. Pearcy as an 

21 expert petroleum g e o l o g i s t , Mr. Examiner. 

22 MR. MARTIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Pearcy, s p e l l your 

24 l a s t name. 

25 THE WITNESS: Pearcy, P-E-A-R-C-Y. 
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1 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Pearcy i s so 

2 q u a l i f i e d . 

3 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) Mr. Pearcy, l e t ' s run through 

4 your e x h i b i t s q u i c k l y . What i s E x h i b i t 9? 

5 A. E x h i b i t 9 i s a s t r u c t u r e map on the top of the 

6 Cherry Canyon. Cherry Canyon i s a submember of the 

7 Delaware Formation, and t h a t i s the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l 

8 t h a t we -- Cherry Canyon i s the i n t e r v a l t h a t we are 

9 i n j e c t i n g i n t o . 

10 Q. I s the Cherry Canyon also the zone from which 

11 Cimarex's w e l l s produce -- i s producing from? 

12 A. From a d i f f e r e n t horizon w i t h i n the Cherry 

13 Canyon, yes, s i r . That's c o r r e c t . 

14 Q. Since you have two of them, E x h i b i t s 10 and 11, 

15 i f we can run through those e x h i b i t s , Mr. Pearcy. 

16 A. Okay. The cross s e c t i o n i n through here i s 

17 i n c l u d i n g three o f f s e t w e l l s showing the i n t e r v a l t h a t 

18 we're c a l l i n g the Ross Sand, an i n f o r m a l name f o r the 

19 i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l . You can see i n the Amoco Federal #1 

20 our SWD, the second w e l l from the l e f t - h a n d side, and 

21 t r a c i n g t h a t w e l l , i t ' s gone i n t o three o f f s e t s i n the 

22 southwest and southeast and eastern d i r e c t i o n and 

23 showing the c o n t i n u i t y of t h a t sand. 
24 Q. What i s the approximate depth of the i n j e c t i o n 

25 i n t e r v a l i n the SWD well? 
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1 A. As shown there on t h a t second w e l l , 4,022 i s 

2 the top p e r f o r a t i o n , and approximately 4,208 i s the 

3 bottom p e r f o r a t i o n i n the Amoco Federal #1. 

4 Q. And you said the -- Cimarex's producing w e l l s 

5 are completed i n the Delaware but at a d i f f e r e n t zone? 

6 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. And E x h i b i t 11 shows more or less s i m i l a r 

8 information? 

9 A. Excuse me, s i r ? 

10 Q. E x h i b i t 11 --• 

11 A. That's another cross s e c t i o n of the same sand, 

12 the other f o u r o f f s e t w e l l s , and again showing the 

13 c o n t i n u i t y of the Ross Sand. And those w e l l s and other 

14 w e l l s t h a t are d i r e c t o f f s e t s t o the Amoco Fed are 

15 producing or i n j e c t i n g i n t o t h i s Ross i n t e r v a l . 

16 Q. Now, from a g e o l o g i c a l standpoint, i s there 

17 s u f f i c i e n t closure i n these zones -- from escaping --

18 A. I'm sor r y . I do have a hearing disorder, and 

19 the r a t t l i n g of paper i s a b i t d i s t r a c t i n g , s i r . 

2 0 Q. I understand. 

21 I s the i n j e c t i o n zone segregated, or does 

2 2 i t have o v e r l y i n g s t r a t a t h a t would prevent -- from a 

23 geologic standpoint, prevent the movement of i n j e c t e d 

24 f l u i d s t o other zones? 
25 A. That's c o r r e c t . There are numerous other 
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1 zones, as shown on the logs there, which are anhydrites 

2 and shales, which w i l l i s o l a t e the i n j e c t i o n water i n t o 

3 the Ross i n t e r v a l . 

4 Q. And based on the geologic data t h a t you have 

5 examined, i s there any evidence of open f a u l t s i n t h i s 

6 area? 

7 A. As we go back t o E x h i b i t Number 9 and look at 

8 the r e l a t i v e l y uniform monoclinal s t r u c t u r e , there i s no 

9 i n d i c a t i o n of any f a u l t s i n the area. 

10 Q. And i s there any evidence of a hydrologic 

11 connection between the disposal zone and any source of 

12 f r e s h water? 

13 A. There i s no i n d i c a t i o n of any k i n d of 

14 connection of t h i s i n t e r v a l i n Cherry Canyon w i t h the 

15 o v e r l y i n g Rustler, which i s the source of the water. 

16 Q. What i s the approximate depth of the Rustler 

17 source of water? 

18 A. Approximately 100 f e e t down i s the top of the 

19 Rustler, and from what I have seen from a r e p o r t t h a t 

20 was done f o r Ross Ranch back i n the '60s and the '70s, 

21 i t looks l i k e approximately 70 f e e t down was where the 

22 water would u s u a l l y be found. So t h i s i s or at l e a s t 

23 was, i n the '60s and '70s, an a r t e s i a n water source t h a t 

24 would b r i n g the water up above the top of the Rustler 

25 Formation. 
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1 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

2 BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM: 

3 Q. When you say 70 f e e t down, what do you mean? 

4 Seventy f e e t down, i s t h a t subsurface you're t a l k i n g 

5 about? 

6 A. Subsurface, not subsea. Yes, s i r . Seventy 

7 f e e t down i s where the s t a t i c water l e v e l had been i n 

8 the w e l l s , which are c i t e d i n the Read r e p o r t s . 

9 Q. So the Rustler, can some of them outcrop t o the 

10 surface, you know, 70 f e e t , 50 feet? You might s t a r t 

11 seeing some of those w e l l s some time at the surface. 

12 Have you seen something l i k e t h at? 

13 A. Yes. Can't see any connection. I s t h a t what 

14 you mean, s i r ? 

15 Q. Yeah, no, whether you can see those w e l l s 

16 outcrop t o the surface. Some of the water i s seeping t o 

17 the surface. I t ' s s t r a i g h t up. You sa i d 70 or 100 fe e t 

18 down. They have outcropped t o the surface, t o surface 

19 water. Have you seen something l i k e i n t h a t the 

20 a r t e s i a n caused by the area? 

21 A. I t appears l i k e any ki n d of surface water. 

22 I t ' s s t i l l not i n connection w i t h the Rustler water, 

23 which i s the main source of the stock tanks i n the area. 

24 Q. You are very ambitious, but I know I'm asking 

25 these questions. 
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1 Okay. Go ahead. 

2 CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION 

3 BY MR. BRUCE: 

4 Q. I t h i n k what the Examiner i s g e t t i n g a t , 

5 Mr. Pearcy, you sa i d these -- at times, at l e a s t 50 

6 years ago, there might have been a r t e s i a n flow from the 

7 Rustler Formation t o the surface. I s t h a t what you 

8 said? 

9 A. No, s i r . By a r t e s i a n , I mean there i s a charge 

10 t o the zone but not a l l the way t o the surface. 

11 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Pearcy, since we're 

12 here, can you give me --

13 EXAMINER BROOKS: Excuse me. We need t o go 

14 one at a time. 

15 Had you f i n i s h e d your answer? Could you 

16 f i n i s h your answer t o Mr. Bruce's question? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. {BY MR. BRUCE) From the -- there was an 

19 a r t e s i a n flow t o the Rustler? I s what you're saying? 

20 A. There i s an a r t e s i a n charge i n the Rustler 

21 Formation. Again, j u s t west on the west side of our 

22 sec t i o n , the Pecos River flows, and there are places 

23 where t h i s R u stler Formation outcrops there. And i t i s 

24 believed, from the i n f o r m a t i o n I have from the Read 

25 r e p o r t , t h a t the recharge t o the Rustler Formation would 
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1 occur from the r i v e r and then be t r a n s f e r r e d over t o 

2 w e l l s t h a t w i l l be completed on the Ross Ranch or nearby 

3 f o r t h i s water. Am I answering the question? 

4 Q. Yes. But, again, there i s no hydrologic 

5 connection between the i n j e c t i o n zone and the Rustler 

6 Formation? 

7 A. There i s no i n d i c a t i o n of any ki n d of 

8 connection of the i n j e c t i o n zone w i t h the Rustler. 

9 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Counselor, thank you 

10 very much. I understand what he's saying now. 

11 CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION 

12 BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM: 

13 Q. Since we are here -- I hate t o deal w i t h a l l 

14 the maps. That's why I wanted t o ask t h i s question. 

15 What i s the v e r t i c a l extent of t h i s Cherry Canyon? Does 
16 i t include the Upper Abbey? Does i t include the Ross 

17 Sand and the Upper Abbey? What i s the v e r t i c a l extent 

18 of t h i s Cherry Canyon, do you know, so t h a t I don't have 

19 t o ask i t at the end of the -- I can get t h a t squared 

20 out [ s i c ] . What i s the v e r t i c a l extent of the Cherry 

21 Canyon? 

22 CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION 

23 BY MR. BRUCE: 

24 Q. What i s the top o f the Cherry Canyon, and what 

25 i s the bottom? 
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1 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Exactly. 

2 A. Yeah. The top of the Cherry Canyon i s what I'm 

3 showing on the cross se c t i o n , which i s approximately 

4 3,800 f e e t . That's the upper l i n e . 

5 CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION 

6 BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM: 

7 Q. And then the bottom i s what? 

8 A. And the bottom of the Cherry Canyon would be 

9 approximately 200 f e e t below the bottom of the cross 

10 s e c t i o n where the Brushy Canyon Formation would be. 

11 Q. Does the Cherry Canyon include the Upper Abbey, 

12 according t o your --

13 A. Yes, s i r . I t includes the Ross and these Abbey 

14 sands and the Cherry Canyon i n t e r v a l . Again, the Abbey 

15 i s not productive i n the immediate area. I t ' s a deeper 

16 Williamson sand, which i s the productive zone. 

17 Q. So the bottom of t h i s Cherry Canyon would be up 

18 t o 4,360; i s t h a t correct? What would be the bottom of 

19 the Cherry Canyon before we have the Brushy Canyon. 

20 A. I need t o consult some a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n , 

21 but the approximate base of the Cherry Canyon would be 

22 around 45- t o 4,800 f e e t . 

23 Q. Okay. I t ' s nothing against you, Mr. Pearcy. I 

24 j u s t want t o get the in f o r m a t i o n , l i k e I t o l d you. 

25 A. Okay. Please speak up, s i r . 
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EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. So I don't have 

2 t o ask you questions again. Go ahead, Mr. Bruce. 

3 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I'm f i n i s h e d w i t h 

4 t h i s witness --

5 CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION 

6 BY MR. BRUCE: 

7 

8 

Q. But were E x h i b i t s 9, 10 and 11 prepared by you? 

A. Yes, they were. 

9 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , i s the g r a n t i n g of t h i s 

10 a p p l i c a t i o n i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation and the 

11 prevention of waste? 

12 A. Yes, s i r . 

13 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I move the 

14 admission of E x h i b i t s 9, 10 and 11. 

15 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Any objection? 

16 MR. MARTIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

17 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: E x h i b i t s 9, 10 and 11 

18 w i l l be admitted. 

19 (Cimarex Energy Company of Colorado E x h i b i t 

20 Numbers 9, 10 and 11 were o f f e r e d and 

21 admitted i n t o evidence.) 

22 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Martin? ' 

23 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

24 BY MR. MARTIN: 

25 Q. Mr. Pearcy, i n your testimony, you t e s t i f i e d 
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1 about the zones and t h a t the d e n s i t y or the closure of 

2 the zones -- t o where i t was your opinion t h a t would not 

3 get flow from the i n j e c t i o n w e l l i n t o other zones. I 

4 t h i n k t h a t ' s a f a i r c h a r a c t e r i z a t i o n of your testimony. 

5 That o p i n i o n has nothing t o do w i t h what would be the 

6 i n t e g r i t y of the casing under cement i n t h i s w e l l , 

7 SWD-380, does i t ? 

8 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

9 Q. And so you're not g i v i n g any opi n i o n as t o the 

10 i n t e g r i t y of the w e l l as f a r as i t s casing, the 

11 c o n d i t i o n of the cement or anything else i n r e l a t i o n t o 

12 the w e l l , are you? 

13 A. No, s i r , I've not commented on t h a t . 

14 Q. Now, l e t me ask you -- I'm a l i t t l e confused by 

15 your testimony regarding Rustler H i l l s Formation, so 

16 help me out here, i f you would. Rustler H i l l s i s a 

17 formation t h a t we r e f e r t o t h a t water flows -- i t ' s 

18 groundwater f l o w i n g underground from west t o east, i s n ' t 

19 i t ? 

20 A. I n t h i s area, yes, s i r . 

21 Q. I t comes out of the Capitan -- I'm sorry. I t 

22 comes out of the Guadalupe Mountain region and flows 

23 underground toward the Pecos River; i s t h a t c o r r e c t , 

24 s i r ? 

25 A. I n t h i s area, I would say t h a t the recharge 
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1 from the Pecos River i s also s i g n i f i c a n t . 

2 Q. I s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t you sa i d t h i s , but l e t me 

3 explore i t a l i t t l e more. I s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t there are 

4 numerous l o c a t i o n s where the groundwater flow out of 

5 Rustler H i l l s Formation a c t u a l l y feeds the Pecos River? 

6 A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. And t h a t i s -- t h a t feeding of the Pecos River 

8 i s a major source of the volume of flow at the s t a t e 

9 l i n e t o meet -- t o help meet the compact requirements, 

10 i s n ' t i t ? 

11 A. That's what I have read, s i r . 

12 Q. Now, i f I understood your testimony c o r r e c t l y , 

13 you're saying t h a t the r i v e r volume i t s e l f would cause 

14 water t o flow i n t o the Rustler H i l l s Formation? Did I 

15 understand you c o r r e c t l y ? 

16 A. That's what the r e p o r t t h a t was done f o r Ross 

17 Ranch by Dr. Read says, s i r . 

18 Q. You're t a l k i n g about the o l d Read & Stevens 

19 r e p o r t i n the '60s? 

2 0 A. I'm t a l k i n g about the Ed Read re p o r t i n '66 and 

21 '73. 

22 Q. Are you aware of any l a t e r studies by the State 

23 Engineer regarding the impact of w e l l s on the r i v e r and 

24 the r a t i o of pumping t o impact on the r i v e r done i n the 

25 1990s? Have you seen any of those? 
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1 A. No, s i r , I've not. 

2 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the models t h a t the State 

3 Engineer uses t o determine impact on the r i v e r and flow 

4 o f f i c e ? Have you ever seen any of those models, or d i d 

5 you r e f e r t o those? 

6 A. I have not seen them, and I've not r e f e r r e d t o 

7 them. 

8 Q. So you're basing your o p i n i o n on the volume, 

9 and the r i v e r somehow feeds back i n t o Rustler H i l l s 

10 based on the report? We a l l c a l l i t the Read-Stevens 

11 r e p o r t , but t h a t r e p o r t i n the 1960s. That's your 

12 basis? 

13 A. I'm saying there's an e f f e c t on the r i v e r , 

14 t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

15 Q. Do you know whether t h a t i s , i n f a c t , t r u e 

16 today because of lower volumes i n the r i v e r ? 

17 A. I do not know i f t h a t ' s a f a c t today. 

18 Q. So you can't t e l l us t h a t what was an opinion 

19 i n 1960 i n the 1960s i s a v a l i d o p i n i o n today, can 

2 0 you? 

21 A. I can t e l l you, s i r , t h a t the s a l i n i t i e s t h a t 

22 were found i n the 1960s and t h a t are found today i n the 

23 re p o r t t h a t y o u ' l l see are very s i m i l a r , and I don't 

24 b e l i e v e there's any argument f o r a strong change of the 

25 hydrologic s i t u a t i o n . 
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1 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h Well C-2713, which i s a 

2 b r i n e w e l l pumping -- t h a t pumps water out of the 

3 Rustler H i l l s Formation? Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t 

4 well? 

5 A. I am not, s i r . 

6 Q. Are you aware of the -- you know what Red B l u f f 

7 Power and Water [ s i c ] i s ; do you not? 

8 A. Red B l u f f Water, yes, s i r . 

9 Q. Are you aware of Red B l u f f Power and Water 

10 [ s i c ] D i s t r i c t ' s e f f o r t s t o d e s a l i n i z e the r i v e r at the 

11 s t a t e l i n e ? 

12 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I object t o t h i s 

13 l i n e of questioning. I don't know what i t has t o do 

14 w i t h t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n . He's asking the witness t o 

15 speculate on studies he's never reviewed. I f he wants 

16 t o put on evidence of t h i s matter, he's fre e t o do so, 

17 but i t ' s questioning a witness about matters he said he 

18 hasn't reviewed. 

19 EXAMINER BROOKS: He j u s t asked at t h i s 

20 p o i n t , he j u s t asked the witness i f he was f a m i l i a r w i t h 

21 i t . So I would over t h a t -- advise the Examiner t o 

22 ov e r r u l e t h a t o b j e c t i o n . 

23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Objection overruled. 

24 Q. {BY MR. MARTIN) Do I need t o rephrase the 

25 question? I ' l l r e s t a t e the question, Mr. Pearcy. 
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1 A. I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h any issues on t h a t . 

2 Q. So, again, the basis of your testimony and 

3 opi n i o n t h a t was e l i c i t e d on d i r e c t i s based upon the 

4 1960 Read -- I c a l l i t the Read-Stevens study? 

5 A. Yes, s i r , t h a t r e p o r t t h a t you provided t o us. 

6 Q. And you have not done any independent studies 

7 f o r the current impact or status f o r purposes of 

8 pr e p a r a t i o n of t h i s -- your testimony on t h i s 

9 a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

10 A. I am very s a t i s f i e d t h a t there i s no impact or 

11 i n j e c t i o n zone i n t o the Rustler. 

12 Q. But you've not made those studies, have you, as 

13 of today? You have not made those studies of impact as 

14 of today, have you? 

15 A. I have not made any studies as t o the impact 

16 today. 

17 Q. Thank you. That's a l l . 

18 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

19 BY MR. BRUCE: 

20 Q. Mr. Pearcy, the question t o you i s : I s there 

21 any geologic connection? You studied the geology i n 

22 t h i s area. 

23 A. There i s none whatsoever. There i s no 

24 i n d i c a t i o n of any connection of the Ru s t l e r Formation 

25 w i t h the Cherry Canyon. 
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1 Q. Thank you. 

2 MR. MARTIN: No a d d i t i o n a l questions. 

3 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Anything f u r t h e r ? 

4 MR. BRUCE: Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

5 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Brooks? 

6 EXAMINER BROOKS: I have no questions. 

7 RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

8 BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM: 

9 Q. How deep i s the Rustler i n t h i s area? The 

10 Rustler Formation, how deep i s i t i n t h i s area? 

11 A. I'm sorry, s i r ? 

12 Q. How deep i s the Rustler Formation i n t h i s area? 

13 A. Where d i d I get the information? 

14 MR. BRUCE: The depth of the Rustler. 

15 A. The depth of the Rustler, 100 f e e t i s what i s 

16 c i t e d i n the r e p o r t . The top of the Rustler i s a very 

17 common geologic top, which can be mapped across the 

18 area. Understand, the d i p on t h a t formation i s from the 

19 n o r t h t o the south. 

20 Q. (BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM) I understand the Rustler 

21 provides most of the underground d r i n k i n g water. And 

22 your testimony i s t h a t there i s no geologic connection 

23 between the Cherry Canyon and the Rustler? I s t h a t what 

24 you said? 

25 A. E x a c t l y , s i r , no connec t ion . 
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1 Q. I s t h a t from a g e o l o g i c a l study or from 

2 personal opinion? I s t h a t from a study or from your 

3 opinion? 

4 A. Based on the evidence, yes, s i r . 

5 Q. I n t h i s Cherry Canyon, i s i t a p a r t i c u l a r pool 

6 i n t o which you are i n j e c t i n g t h i s water i n t o the Cherry 

7 Canyon Formation? I s there a p a r t i c u l a r pool? 

8 A. The f i e l d i n t h i s area i s , I be l i e v e , c a l l e d 

9 the Brushy Canyon f i e l d . 

10 Q. You know i t ' s p a r t of the Delaware group, and 

11 they have a bunch of pools, you know, and then the 

12 extent -- the v e r t i c a l extent, I asked you, i s from t h a t 

13 800 t o maybe 4,208 or 4,500. So I was wondering i f 

14 there i s an ac t u a l pool i n t o which these waters have 

15 been i n j ected i n . 

16 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I believe i t ' s 

17 the Brushy Draw-Delaware. 

18 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Brushy Draw? 

19 THE WITNESS: Brushy Draw. Thank you. 

2 0 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: That's what I was 

21 asking. 

22 THE WITNESS: Okay. Appreciate t h a t . 

23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Because when you go t o 

24 the Cherry Canyon, there are a l o t of places you can put 

2 5 your water i n the Cherry Canyon. 
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1 MR. BRUCE: And I b e l i e v e t h a t 

2 encompasses the Brushy Draw pool encompasses the 

3 e n t i r e Delaware. 

4 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Thank you very much. 

5 Q. {BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM) And then I t h i n k the 

6 land person t e s t i f i e d there i s adequate o v e r l y i n g 

7 the -- und e r l y i n g the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l . 

8 A. Overlying? 

9 Q. There i s no way t h i s i n j e c t e d water w i l l 

10 migrate? Assuming we have a l l our w e l l s a p p r o p r i a t e l y 

11 constructed, there i s no way t h i s i n j e c t e d w e l l w i l l 

12 migrate upwards and contaminate the d r i n k i n g water --

13 Rustler? 

14 A. No, s i r . As shown from t h i s s t r a t i g r a p h y here, 

15 everything i s q u i t e consistent t h a t there are p l e n t y of 

16 o v e r l y i n g and underlying zones above and below the Ross 

17 Sand t o i s o l a t e t h a t i n j e c t i o n . I s t h a t the answer? 

18 Q. No. You described the geology as the o v e r l y i n g 

19 and und e r l y i n g -- I mean un d e r l y i n g formation of t h i s 

2 0 Cherry Canyon. You described the geology. What type of 

21 rock o v e r l i e s or u n d e r l i e s --

22 A. Immediately o v e r l y i n g the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l ? 

23 Q. Yes. Yes. 

24 A. Okay. As shown on the l o g here, the dens i t y 

25 neut ron i s a ve ry convenient way t o i d e n t i f y 
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1 the l i t h o l o g i e s . 

2 Q. So what do you have here? 

3 A. And on our i n j e c t i o n w e l l , we have a density 

4 neutron, and on the cross s e c t i o n , at l e a s t the one I'm 

5 l o o k i n g at here, which i s E x h i b i t Number 11, a l l but one 

6 of the logs are d e n s i t y neutrons. And those are showing 

7 where the p o r o s i t y i s high, t h a t those are sandstones, 

8 or other sandstones i n the area t h a t are water-bearing, 

9 but there i s enough other hard limes and dolomites and 

10 anhydrites, p r i m a r i l y limestones, i n t h i s area which 

11 c o n s i s t e n t l y i s o l a t e the Ross Sand from the o v e r l y i n g 

12 wet sands. 

13 And I've shown about 100 f e e t or so of 

14 u n d e r l y i n g i n t e r v a l , which i s the -- c a l l e d here the 

15 Upper Abbey zone. And at the top of the Abbey, you can 

16 see t h a t there i s a 10- t o 15-foot shale or limestone 

17 which i s i s o l a t i n g the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l from the 

18 u n d e r l y i n g zones, and there are p l e n t y of other 

19 l o w - p o r o s i t y limestones w i t h i n the Abbey and down below, 

20 again, t o keep a l l the i n j e c t i o n water i n the Ross Sand. 

21 Q. Okay. Very good. 

22 While we're t a l k i n g about i t , what i s the 

23 deepest water w e l l i n the area? Do you know t h a t --

24 t h a t answer? 

25 A. I know t h a t the water w e l l s i n the area we've 
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1 been t a l k i n g about are a l l from the Rust l e r . 

2 Q. What i s the deep depth of the deepest well? 

3 A. Approximately 100 t o 120 f e e t . I understand 

4 t h a t there have been some other studies which perhaps 

5 the other p a r t y may want t o share w i t h you about t h a t . 

6 Q. Yeah. Okay. Let me f i n i s h up. 

7 I don't know who i s going t o answer t h i s 

8 question. This a p p l i c a t i o n was approved four years ago. 

9 You know, do you have -- are you going t o answer t h i s 

10 question, or maybe the engineer w i l l answer t h i s 

11 question? I want t o see the water a n a l y s i s then and now 

12 and see how they changed or i f they're d i f f e r e n t . Do 

13 you have t h a t information? 

14 MR. BRUCE: Our engineer w i l l t e s t i f y t o 

15 t h a t . 

16 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: W i l l t e s t i f y t o t h a t . 

17 I wanted t o know whether i t was the g e o l o g i s t or the 

18 engineer. So t h a t i s a question f o r the engineer. 

19 Okay. Very good. 

2 0 Nothing f u r t h e r . You may step down. 

21 MR. MARTIN: May I ask one a d d i t i o n a l 

22 question? 

23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. You may. 

24 MR. MARTIN: Thank you. 

25 
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1 RECROSS EXAMINATION 

2 BY MR. MARTIN: 

3 Q. Mr. Pearcy, I want t o go back t o t h i s 1960s 

4 study t h a t you have made reference t o . As I understood 

5 your testimony, you sai d t h a t i t e s t a b l i s h e d t h i s 

6 p a r t i c u l a r r e l a t i o n s h i p , i f I may use the term, of the 

7 r i v e r -- Pecos River feeding i n t o the Rustler H i l l s 

8 Formation. Let me quote, i f I may, a sentence out of 

9 t h a t study. 

10 "The t e s t appears t o have es t a b l i s h e d t h a t 

11 there i s a h y d r a u l i c c o n t i n u i t y from the surface water 

12 i n the Pecos River t o the Rustler A q u i f e r under the Ross 

13 Ranch." He uses the term "appears." Does t h a t , i n your 

14 mind, e s t a b l i s h t h a t i t ' s a f a c t , t h a t ' s t h a t f o r t h a t , 

15 or he was j u s t simply s t a t i n g t h a t i t appears t h a t may 

16 be the case? 

17 A. Your ranch had commissioned Dr. Read t o do t h i s 

18 study, and i n Dr. Read's es t i m a t i o n , t h a t was what was 

19 happening. 

20 Q. He uses the term "appears." Does t h a t , i n your 

21 mind, e s t a b l i s h t h a t i t was an absolute f a c t t h a t i s 

22 what's t a k i n g place? 

23 A. I am simply c i t i n g the a u t h o r i t i e s , and I would 

24 say I have not i n v e s t i g a t e d , s i r . 

25 Q. I'm not sure you've answered my question. Let 
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1 me ask i t again, please. He uses the term "appears." 

2 He doesn't say i t e s t a b l i s h e s t h i s as an absolute f a c t . 

3 A. Would you l i k e me t o read from the study? 

4 Q. I have the study. I'm lo o k i n g at t h a t 

5 p a r t i c u l a r language. 

6 A. Okay. 

7 THE WITNESS: Well, f o r the Examiners, 

8 would they l i k e t o hear? 

9 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: I don't have the study. 

10 I don't know what you're t a l k i n g about. 

11 Q. (BY MR. MARTIN) He uses the term "appears," 

12 doesn't he? 

13 A. (No response.) 

14 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: We may have t o get a 

15 d i c t i o n a r y and see what "appears" means. 

16 (Laughter.) 

17 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: I t appears t o me nobody 

18 knows what "appears" means. Can we answer the question 

19 and proceed. 

20 THE WITNESS: I would l i k e t o quote e x a c t l y 

21 from the study, i f he's p i n n i n g me down t o t h i s . I f 

22 y o u ' l l l e t me examine the study and perhaps give me ten 

23 minutes or so, I can f i n d the wording i n here, but --

24 MR. BRUCE: We can s t a r t w i t h our next 

25 witness. 
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1 THE WITNESS: -- I t h i n k i t ' s i r r e l e v a n t , 

2 s i r . 

3 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: I t ' s very r e l e v a n t , but 

4 I want somebody t o define "appears." 

5 MR. BRUCE: Rather than have the witness 

6 study i t on the stand, i f we could t e m p o r a r i l y dismiss 

7 the witness and move on w i t h the case, Mr. Examiner? 

8 Q. (BY MR. MARTIN) We are l o o k i n g at a study -- I 

9 kept saying " i n the 1960s," which i s the o l d 

10 Read-Stevens, but t h i s i s a c t u a l l y -- our docket says 

11 "1975 study." I s t h a t the one you're l o o k i n g at? 

12 A. I have two stu d i e s . 

13 Q. You do? You have one i n the '60s? 

14 A. 1966. 

15 Q. That's the o l d Read-Stevens study? 

16 A. The other one i s 1973. 

17 Q. There i s one i n '75, done f o r Ross Ranch; 

18 Mr. Read. Do you have t h a t one? 

19 A. I f i t was done f o r Ross Ranch, t h a t would not 

20 be p u b l i c i n f o r m a t i o n , and Ross Ranch has i t , and we 

21 don't. 

22 Q. So I'm r e f e r r i n g t o something you've not seen; 

23 i s t h a t c o r r e c t (laughter)? 

24 A. You must be, s i r . 

25 Q. Okay. Tha t ' s i t . No more ques t ions . 
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1 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: For the sake of 

2 argument, Mr. Pearcy -- I mean, don't clue me out now. 

3 What study are you t a l k i n g about? I don't have the 

4 study, and I don't know what we're t r y i n g t o get at 

5 here. "Appears" what? Can somebody answer t h a t 

6 question? 

7 THE WITNESS: ( I n d i c a t i n g . ) 

8 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Because I don't want t o 

9 be b l i n d t o what's going on. I don't have the study 

10 t h a t was done i n 1973 or 1966. I t might be a very 

11 important study t h a t should be something I should 

12 consider, but I don't have i t . Do we have i t ? Does 

13 somebody have i t ? 

14 MR. MARTIN: You should have t h a t . The one 

15 I'm r e f e r r i n g t o i s i n e x h i b i t s t h a t I submitted. I 

16 have submitted i t i n e x h i b i t s . 

17 I f I may help out here, there's been a 

18 number of studies on the Pecos River, i t s flow and i t s 

19 sources of water. And you can go back i n t o the l a t e 

20 '50s and e a r l y '60s; there are what we c a l l the 

21 Read-Stevens r e p o r t s . There's been a whole series of 

22 studies over the years r e l a t i n g t o the Pecos River, i t s 

23 flow, the water q u a l i t y at the s t a t e l i n e , issues i n 

24 r e l a t i o n t o the compact. There have been studies as 

25 l a t e as the 1990s, when the Carlsbad Basin was being 
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1 adjudicated, as t o the r e l a t i o n s h i p between the w e l l s 

2 pumping and the r i v e r . And as you get below the 

3 Delaware, below the gauging s t a t i o n , you get t o a 

4 one-to-one r a t i o . So there are a whole s e r i e s of 

5 studies out ther e . 

6 And he was l o o k i n g at the '60s r e p o r t , and 

7 we've been l o o k i n g at the '75 r e p o r t . So I asked him a 

8 question on something he had not seen, t o c l a r i f y t h i s . 

9 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Ma r t i n , what I 

10 would l i k e t o do i s , when you c a l l your witness, maybe 

11 he w i l l be able t o e x p l a i n t h a t r e p o r t t o us, i f i t ' s 

12 very important f o r you. I would l i k e t o hear about the 

13 r e p o r t . Your witness can t e l l me about the r e p o r t . I f 

14 Mr. Pearcy doesn't have i t , then he can't answer the 

15 question on what he doesn't have. 

16 MR. MARTIN: I understand. 

17 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: But maybe i t ' s 

18 c o n f i d e n t i a l i n f o r m a t i o n , because such a r e p o r t may be 

19 c o n f i d e n t i a l t o the Ross Ranch, and t h a t ' s why the OCD 

20 don't [ s i c ] have any such r e p o r t . And t h a t ' s why I have 

21 confusion. I don't know what else t o do. 

22 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . Again, the 

23 hydrology of the Rustler H i l l s , or the Rustler 

24 Formation, i s not the issue today. I t ' s a matter of 

25 i n j e c t i o n i n t o the Cherry Canyon i n t e r v a l at 
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1 approximately 4,000 f e e t , which has no communication 

2 w i t h any other k i n d of problem t h a t ' s happening i n the 

3 Rustler. 

4 MR. MARTIN: For p o i n t of c l a r i f i c a t i o n , we 

5 sent i n our e x h i b i t s sometime back, and the Ed Read 

6 r e p o r t i s i n E x h i b i t Number 4. 

7 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yes. I believe t h a t Ross 

8 Ranch d i d f i l e -- p r e - f i l e e x h i b i t s , which i s re q u i r e d 

9 f o r Commission hearings. I t i s n ' t a c t u a l l y r e q u i r e d f o r 

10 D i v i s i o n hearings, but t h a t ' s the s u b t l e t y of 

11 d i s t i n c t i o n of the r u l e s i f someone doesn't p r a c t i c e 

12 here every day, as Mr. Bruce does, might not be aware 

13 o f . 

14 MR. MARTIN: I n an abundance of caution, we 

15 sent them i n . 

16 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: You d i d a good job, 

17 Mr. Martin, but l i k e I said, I don't look a t everything 

18 before I come t o hearing, because t h a t ' s our -- t h a t ' s 

19 j u s t the nature, according t o the Legal Examiner. I 

20 have your e x h i b i t s . I d i d n ' t look at i t , you know, 

21 because I d i d n ' t understand the relevance. So since i t 

22 i s here, I'm going t o read i t . Maybe I ' l l begin t o 

23 gather what you're t a l k i n g about. So t h a t i s very 

24 important. 
25 You know, does anyone have anything f u r t h e r 
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1 f o r t h i s witness? 

2 MR. BRUCE: I would l i k e since 

3 Mr. Ma r t i n asked t h a t question, I j u s t want t o c l a r i f y . 

4 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

5 BY MR. BRUCE: 

6 Q. Mr. Pearcy, what you're saying i s simply t h a t 

7 there i s no communication between the i n j e c t i o n zone and 

8 the Rustler? 

9 A. Yes, s i r . 

10 Q. What might happen i n the Rustler due t o 

11 excessive pumping or anything else i s beyond the scope 

12 of your testimony? 

13 A. Yes, s i r . 

14 Q. And i t ' s r e a l l y beyond the scope of t h i s 

15 hearing, i s n ' t i t ? 

16 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

17 Q. We are not here t o determine water flow i n the 

18 Pecos or -- as long as we can show t h a t there i s no 

19 contamination from the i n j e c t i o n zone i n t o freshwater 

20 w e l l s i n t h i s area? 

21 A. Precisely. 

22 Q. Thank you. 

23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Mart in? 

24 MR. MARTIN: No a d d i t i o n a l ques t ions . 

25 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. At t h i s p o i n t , 
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's take a ten-minute break and come back at quarter 

2 to 11 :00. 

3 (Break taken, 10:33 a.m. t o 10:54 a.m.) 

4 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Continue w i t h Case 

5 Number 14994, and at t h i s p o i n t , Counselor, you have t o 

6 c a l l your l a s t witness. 

7 MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

8 SCOTT GENGLER, 

9 a f t e r having been p r e v i o u s l y sworn under oath, was 

10 questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

11 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

12 BY MR. BRUCE: 

13 Q. Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name and c i t y 

14 of residency? 

15 A. Scott Gengler, Midland, Texas. 

16 Q. Who do you work f o r and i n what capacity? 

17 A. I work f o r Cimarex Energy, and I'm a petroleum 

18 engineer. 

19 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

20 Division? 

21 A. Yes, I have. 

22 Q. And were your c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert 

23 petroleum engineer accepted as a matter of record? 

24 A. Yes, they were. 

25 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? 
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1 A. Yes, I am. 

2 Q. And does your area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y 

3 engineering r e s p o n s i b i l i t y include t h i s p o r t i o n of 

4 southeast New Mexico? 

5 A. Yes, i t does. 

6 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I tender 

7 Mr. Gengler as an expert petroleum engineer. 

8 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: So q u a l i f i e d . 

9 MR. MARTIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

10 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Thanks. 

11 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) Mr. Gengler, l e t ' s s t a r t w i t h --

12 get a few thin g s out of the way. During the course of 

13 the p r i o r hearing and t h i s hearing, have you reviewed 

14 the e x h i b i t s and statements submitted by Ross Ranch 

15 regarding Cimarex's SWD well? 

16 A. Yes, I have. 

17 Q. Now, one of them, i f y o u ' l l r e c a l l , i s 

18 regarding volumes i n j e c t e d i n t o the w e l l . Let's s t a r t 

19 w i t h t h a t . F i r s t of a l l , the Mallon permit, what was 

20 the allowed i n j e c t i o n volumes under t h a t permit; do you 

21 r e c a l l ? 

22 A. 1,600 b a r r e l s a day. 

23 Q. Maximum? 

24 A. Correct. 

25 Q. So t h a t would be, i f I'm doing my math r i g h t , 
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3,000 b a r r e l s a month? 

2 A. Sounds about r i g h t . 

3 Q. Let's s t a r t w i t h E x h i b i t 12. What i s E x h i b i t 

4 12? 

5 A. I t i s a p r i n t o u t from the OCD Web s i t e of the 

6 volumes rep o r t e d as i n j e c t e d i n t o t h a t w e l l h i s t o r i c a l l y 

7 back t o 1994. 

8 Q. And except f o r the two items we're going t o 

9 mention i n a second, have the i n j e c t i o n volumes been 

10 con s i s t e n t w i t h the o r i g i n a l SWD permit, SWD-380? 

11 A. That 1s c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. Does t h i s E x h i b i t 12 show two anomalous 

13 f i g u r e s 

14 A. Yes, i t does. 

15 Q. And what are they? And s p e c i f y a date and year 

16 f o r the Examiner. 

17 A. The f i r s t one shows 323,265 b a r r e l s i n August 

18 of 1999 

19 MR. BRUCE: So August of 1999, which i s on 

20 the top of the t h i r d page, Mr. Examiner. 

21 A. I'd also l i k e t o note t h a t at t h a t p o i n t i n 

22 time, Mallon was the operator. 

23 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) And what i s the other anomaly? 

24 A. The other anomaly i s i n March of 2002, f o r 

25 63,996 b a r r e l s , i n March of 2002, and I ' d also l i k e t o 
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1 note t h a t Magnum Hunter was the operator a t t h a t p o i n t 

2 i n time. 

3 Q. Now, i f you can, how can you e x p l a i n those 

4 large numbers -- those two l a r g e r numbers? 

5 A. You know, we do not have records from those two 

6 companies on what was f i l e d , but lo o k i n g a t what was 

7 i n j e c t e d r i g h t before and r i g h t a f t e r and also on both 

8 dates and then l o o k i n g a t what the capacity of the 

9 system was, i n p a r t i c u l a r the i n j e c t i o n pump t h a t has 

10 been out there d u r i n g t h a t time and i s s t i l l out there, 

11 those volumes would not be possible. 

12 MR. MARTIN: Objection. Calls f o r 

13 speculation. He doesn't have any f i r s t h a n d knowledge. 

14 EXAMINER BROOKS: I'm not even sure what 

15 the question was. I missed the question, so perhaps --

16 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) Well, l e t ' s move on t o -- you 

17 mentioned the pump t h a t i s on the i n j e c t i o n w e l l . 

18 A. Correct. 

19 Q. The purpose t h a t i s out there now, was t h a t 

20 has t h a t pump always been on the i n j e c t i o n well? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 13? 

23 A. E x h i b i t 13 i s a data sheet from the 

24 manufacturer of t h a t pump. The ac t u a l pump -- which I 

25 got from the records of when i t was i n s t a l l e d , and when 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
565527f4-c1b9-4e35-a208-55469a800354 



1 
Page 79 

i t was c u r r e n t l y out th e r e , I had a t h i r d p a r t y check 

2 i t . I t was 60T-3M, w i t h a 1.75-inch plunger diameter. 

3 Q. And what i s the maximum amount -- maximum 

4 volume of water t h a t t h a t pump can i n j e c t i n t o a well? 

5 A. The maximum r a t e --

6 Q- Maximum r a t e . 

7 A. -- t h a t t h a t -- t h a t t h a t pump can put out at 

8 maximum RPMs, which i s 500 RPMs, i s 1,607 b a r r e l s a day. 

9 Q. Which i s seven b a r r e l s a day more than was 

10 allowed i n the SWD-380? 

11 A. I f i t ' s running a t maximum RPMs. 

12 Q. And so 1,607 b a r r e l s a day. 

13 Would i t be poss i b l e , j u s t based on the 

14 capacity of the pump, t o i n j e c t 323,000 -- l e t ' s take a 

15 step back. The August 1999 f i g u r e of 323,000, t h a t 

16 would be roughly 11,000 b a r r e l s a day, 10,000 b a r r e l s a 

17 day? 

18 A. I t i s not possi b l e w i t h t h a t pump. 

19 Q. This pump cannot i n j e c t 10- or 11,000 b a r r e l s a 

20 day? 

21 A. No, i t cannot. 

22 Q. And then i f you look at March of 2002, the 

23 reported volume was about 64,000, which i s over -- w e l l 

24 over 2,000 b a r r e l s a day of water i n j e c t e d . I s t h i s 

25 pump capable of i n j e c t i n g t h a t volume at t h a t rate? 
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1 A. No, i t i s not. 

2 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Counselor, excuse 

3 me, please. On E x h i b i t 12, on your l i n e of questioning, 

4 I j u s t looked a t SWD-380. There was no l i m i t on 

5 i n j e c t i o n r a t e . Why are we examining t h i s i n j e c t i o n 

6 rate? I know you sai d i t was supplied or there was a 

7 question from Ross Ranch about the amount of water 

8 i n j e c t e d . You are l i m i t e d by the i n j e c t i o n pressure, 

9 and I haven't seen where i t increased. Even i f I can 

10 see 1 m i l l i o n g a l l o n s a day w i t h 804, which i s 

11 impossible, I can do t h a t , but you are l i m i t e d by 

12 i n j e c t i o n r a t e . So why would -- what i s t h i s l i n e of 

13 questioning? Where i s i t going to? 

14 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, Ross Ranch has 

15 i n d i c a t e d we're hot complying w i t h the i n j e c t i o n permit. 

16 The o r i g i n a l SWD a p p l i c a t i o n requested a maximum of 

17 1,600 b a r r e l s a day t o be i n j e c t e d i n t o the w e l l , and 

18 Mr. Gengler i s saying t h a t the pump on t h a t w e l l cannot 

19 i n j e c t at a r a t e g reater than 1,607 b a r r e l s a day. 

20 EXAMINER BROOKS: You're saying the 

21 a p p l i c a t i o n , not the OCD's order? 

22 THE WITNESS: That's c o r r e c t . 

23 MR. BRUCE: Not the OCD's order. 

24 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Here i s the order. I 

25 don't see any order here t h a t you have t o l i m i t i t t o 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
565527f4-c1b9-4e35-a208-55469a800354 



Page 81 

1 1,600. You are l i m i t e d by the i n j e c t i o n pressure. 

2 MR. BRUCE: But, Mr. Examiner, what we're 

3 saying i s t h a t f o r 23 years, the pump on the w e l l could 

4 not i n j e c t more than 1,600 b a r r e l s . 

5 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Right. I t ' s only 500 

6 RPM. 

7 Go ahead. 

8 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) Mr. Gengler, were there also 

9 some questions r a i s e d about pressures -- i n j e c t i o n 

10 pressures? 

11 A. Yes, there was. 

12 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 14? 

13 A. E x h i b i t 14 i s a graph of the production volumes 

14 and i n j e c t i o n pressure as recorded by the pump. 

15 Q. And what does t h a t show? 

16 A. I t shows t h a t we were below --we being 

17 Cimarex, below 1,000 b a r r e l s per day of i n j e c t i o n r a t e . 

18 On almost a l l occasions, w i t h a couple of exceptions, we 

19 were below the pressure. Those couple of exceptions 

20 were a con t r a c t pumper who was out there. This f i e l d i s 

21 remote f o r us. I t ' s the only t h i n g we have out there, 

22 and he i s r e q u i r e d t o t u r n the pump on and t u r n i t o f f . 

23 And so i n h i s haste, he turned i t on and sped the t h i n g 

24 up t o increase the r a t e , got a l i t t l e b i t higher 

25 pressure than what we had t o l d him he was allowed t o do. 
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1 When we saw t h a t , we got t h a t corrected. A d i f f e r e n t 

2 c o n t r a c t pumper, again, d i d i t , and we shut t h a t down 

3 again, too. 

4 Q. So durin g 2012 and 2013, when t h i s w e l l was 

5 i n j e c t i n g , i t was below the allowed i n j e c t i o n pressure, 

6 correct? 

7 A. That i s c o r r e c t . And those pressures were 

8 w i t h i n -- less than ten percent above what our -- but he 

9 made a mistake. 

10 Q. Now, l e t ' s move on t o the C-108. Just very 

11 b r i e f l y , i s E x h i b i t 15 the C-108 f o r the w e l l prepared 

12 by you? 

13 A. I t was prepared by me and people t h a t I d i r e c t . 

14 Q. Now, d i d you hear Mr. Ma r t i n , i n h i s opening 

15 statement, t a l k about t h i s i s based on o l d data? 

16 A. Yes, I heard t h a t . 

17 Q. Now, as p a r t of t h i s , you have t o look at w e l l s 

18 w i t h i n the one-half area mile of review; i s t h a t 

19 correct? 

20 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

21 Q. Have any new w e l l s been d r i l l e d w i t h i n one-half 

22 mile of the SWD w e l l since the SWD permit was approved 

23 i n 1989? 

24 A. No, there have not. 

25 Q. So there i s no new w e l l i n f o r m a t i o n out there 
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1 t o add t o the C-108? 

2 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

3 Q. Let us run through t h i s j u s t b r i e f l y , and there 

4 i s some supplemental data t h a t we w i l l get t o i n E x h i b i t 

5 16. But f i r s t of a l l , are you proposing the same 

6 maximum i n j e c t i o n pressure and maximum i n j e c t i o n r a t e s 

7 t h a t Mallon O i l requested i n 1989? 

8 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

9 Q. And t u r n i n g t o page 5, I've marked the C-108, 

10 the pages i n the lower, right-hand corner. Could you 

11 describe how the i n j e c t i o n w e l l -- the s t a t u s of the 

12 i n j e c t i o n w e l l and how i t ' s being completed? 

13 A. Where are you r e f e r r i n g t o as the status? 

14 Q. Page 5. 

15 A. I got t h a t . 

16 Q. Okay. The i n j e c t i o n w e l l --

17 A. I t ' s completed i n the Cherry Canyon p o r t i o n of 

18 the Delaware from 4,022 t o 4,208. There i s a packer 

19 t h a t i s set at 3,994. The surface casing i s set at 450 

20 f e e t w i t h cement c i r c u l a t e d . The long s t r i n g was set at 

21 5,820, 450 sacks of cement, w i t h the top of the cement, 

22 by a cement bond l o g , at 2,720. 

23 Q. I s t h i s w e l l p r o p e r l y completed so as t o 

24 prevent the movement of the f l u i d between zones and t o 

25 prevent the contamination of any freshwater sources? 
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A. Yes, i t i s . 

2 Q. This w e l l was i n operation f o r 23 years, 

3 correct? 

4 A. That i s correct.' 

5 Q. And i n your review of data on the w e l l , was 

6 there any i n d i c a t i o n of any escape of f l u i d s i n t o a 

7 producing formation or i n t o a freshwater zone? 

8 A. No, there i s no i n d i c a t i o n . 

9 Q. So the w e l l has been i n j e c t i n g f o r 23 years 

10 without any adverse e f f e c t on any o f f s e t or the surface 

11 owner? 

12 A. To my knowledge, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. Do pages 9 through 13 of the C-108 contain 

14 i n f o r m a t i o n on w e l l s i n the area of review? 

15 A. I t does. 

16 Q. And do we have an e x h i b i t t h a t supplements t h i s 

17 i n f o r m a t i o n somewhat? 

18 A. Yes, we do. 

19 Q. And w i l l we get i n t o t h a t i n a l i t t l e while? 

20 A. ( I n d i c a t i n g . ) 

21 Q. Now, pursuant t o OCD -- the Form C-108, have 

22 you contained i n f o r m a t i o n on PA'd w e l l s on the area of 

23 review? 

24 A. Yes, I have. 

25 Q. And are those -- there i s one misnumbered page, 
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1 but pages 14 and 15, does t h a t contain wellbore sketches 

2 of those wells? 

3 A. I t does. 

4 Q. And have those w e l l s been p r o p e r l y plugged and 

5 abandoned i n order t o --

6 A. Yes. That was approved by the BLM. 

7 Q. Let's move on t o page 18, Mr. Gengler. Again, 

8 18 i s the e x h i b i t showing water w e l l s i n the area, 

9 correct? 

10 A. Correct. 

11 Q. And w e ' l l get t o t h a t i n a minute. 

12 Page 19. I s t h i s a recent water analysis 

13 of produced water t h a t was being i n j e c t e d i n t o the SWD 

14 well? 

15 A. I t i s . 

16 Q. And i n your o p i n i o n , are there any 

17 c o m p a t i b i l i t y problems between the i n j e c t e d water and 

18 the formation water i n the Cherry Canyon? 

19 A. No, there i s not. 

2 0 Q. Let's move on t o page 20, which i s something 

21 t h a t Mr. Ezeanyim asked about. What i s page 20? 

22 A. 20 i s the water an a l y s i s from t h a t BLM Sample 

23 Well t h a t Mallon submitted i n t h e i r 1989 a p p l i c a t i o n . 
24 Q. A c t u a l l y , i t shows several w e l l s ; does i t not? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. The f i r s t one i s a Williamson freshwater w e l l . 

2 And I be l i e v e t h a t i s the --

3 A. A BLM w e l l . 

4 Q. That i s the BLM well? 

5 A. Correct. 

6 Q. And then there i s i n j e c t i o n water, i s the 

7 middle column, correct? 

8 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

9 Q. And then there's another w e l l . I don't know 

10 which w e l l t h a t i s , but t h a t i s a freshwater w e l l , 

11 correct? 

12 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. What are the c h l o r i d e l e v e l s i n these three 

14 wells? 

15 A. The c h l o r i d e -- w e l l , the middle w e l l i s the 

16 produced water from the lease. I t ' s 189,000. The 

17 Williamson freshwater w e l l on the BLM surface, i n 1988, 

18 when t h i s was sampled, was 4,000 c h l o r i d e s , and the 

19 other w e l l was 1,600. 

20 Q. Now, j u s t l o o k i n g a t the produced water, the 

21 Amoco production, 189,000, t h a t ' s p r e t t y s i m i l a r t o the 

22 c h l o r i d e content on page 19 f o r the recent produced w e l l 

23 sample, correct? 

24 A. Correct. 

25 Q. Then what i s c a l l e d the Wi l l i amson f r e s h water . 
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1 t h a t i s the BLM w e l l t h a t Cimarex obtained a sample 

2 from? 

3 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

4 Q. Please describe how t h a t sample was -- f i r s t of 

5 a l l , d i d Cimarex i t s e l f take t h a t sample? 

6 A. No, we d i d not. 

7 Q. What d i d you do t o o b t a i n a sample from the BLM 

8 well? 

9 A. We obtained a t h i r d p a r t y t h a t i s experienced 

10 i n sampling water w e l l s and asked them t o go out there 

11 and o b t a i n a sample out of t h i s w e l l , w i t h a company 

12 t h a t p u l l s equipment, because the w e l l wasn't running at 

13 the time. 

14 Q. And i s t h a t sample attached as pages 21 through 

15 32 of the C-108? 

16 A. Yes. They --

17 Q. Go ahead. 

18 A. They took t h a t sample and sent i t t o the lab. 

19 Their lab then forwarded i t on, without touching i t , t o 

20 t h i s Xenco Laboratories, which i s an EPA water c e r t i f i e d 

21 t e s t i n g l ab. 

22 Q. And, again, Cimarex had nothing t o do w i t h the 

23 t a k i n g or measuring of t h i s water? 

24 A. We had a person on l o c a t i o n t o observe i t but 

25 never took t h a t sample i n our possession. 
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1 Q. And what c h l o r i d e l e v e l s were i n the sample 

2 le v e l ? 

3 MR. MARTIN: May I interpose an o b j e c t i o n 

4 at t h i s point? 

5 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yes, s i r . 

6 MR. MARTIN: I would ob j e c t t o any 

7 testimony about t h i s sample or admission of t h i s sample. 

8 This gentleman d i d not take the sample. He d i d not run 

9 the t e s t . He d i d not maintain possession, custody or 

10 c o n t r o l . I t was done by a t h i r d p a r t y , and we have no 

11 witness here t o say e x a c t l y what they d i d , how they 

12 maintained q u a l i t y I'm s o r r y -- how they maintained 

13 possession, c o n t r o l and i n t e g r i t y of the sample and how 

14 they took the t e s t . He i s not q u a l i f i e d t o t e s t i f y as 

15 t o t h i s , and an improper foundation has been l a i d f o r 

16 the admission of t h i s p a r t i c u l a r r e p o r t . And we'd ask 

17 t h a t i t be s t r i c k e n . 

18 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I'd simply say, 

19 t h i s i s t y p i c a l of what i s done. The companies don't 

2 0 sample the water. The o l d samples were taken by 

21 H a l l i b u r t o n , another p a r t y . Furthermore, the D i v i s i o n 

22 does not s t r i c t l y f o l l o w the r u l e s of evidence, as you 

23 w e l l know; i t ' s i n the r e g u l a t i o n s . And our opponents 

24 were complaining e a r l y on t h a t there was no freshwater 

25 sample. They have not allowed us t o take samples from 
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1 t h e i r w e l l s . And t h i s i s simply -- Mr. Gengler i s 

2 simply saying t h a t t o avoid any appearance of 

3 im p r o p r i e t y , they had a t h i r d p a r t y take the sample. I 

4 t h i n k t h i s i s admissible. 

5 EXAMINER BROOKS: I t h i n k i f we were t o 

6 f o l l o w the ri g o r o u s requirements t h a t are followed i n 

7 court -- I r e a l l y don't have i n mind -- I know there i s 

8 a very r i g o r o u s requirement t h a t ' s f o l l o w e d i n c r i m i n a l 

9 cases and a somewhat less rigorous requirement t h a t 1 s 

10 followed i n c i v i l cases. I haven't d e a l t w i t h those 

11 t h i n g s i n the l a s t 15 years, so I'm a l i t t l e unclear on 

12 i t a t t h i s p o i n t . But I t h i n k i f we were t o f o l l o w 

13 e i t h e r the c r i m i n a l d i s t r i c t court r u l e or even the 

14 c i v i l d i s t r i c t court r u l e , at t h i s p o i n t i t would 

15 operate as a s u r p r i s e . I t ' s not customarily a p p l i e d i n 

16 OCD proceedings. So I would advice the Examiner t o 

17 ove r r u l e the o b j e c t i o n and t r e a t these matters going t o 

18 the weight r a t h e r than t o a d m i s s i b i l i t y . 

19 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Objection overruled. 

2 0 Rephrase your question. 

21 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) Mr. Gengler, what c h l o r i d e l e v e l 

22 was shown i n t h i s t e s t ? 

23 A. Chloride l e v e l was 1,780. 

24 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Which w e l l are you 

25 t a l k i n g about? 
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THE WITNESS: On the H a l l i b u r t o n r e p o r t , i t 

2 was r e f e r r e d t o as the Williamson w e l l . 

3 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: The Williamson w e l l on 

4 the o l d r e p o r t or the new report? 

5 THE WITNESS: On my r e p o r t , I'm c a l l i n g i t 

6 the BLM freshwater w e l l . 

7 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, i f you would t u r n 

8 t o page 18, you see the green dot f o r the SWD well? Off 

9 t o the east i s the BLM Sample Well. 

10 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. Oh, "BLM Sample 

11 Well." I s t h a t where you got the sample? 

12 MR. BRUCE: And i f you t u r n t o page 20. 

13 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. 

14 MR. BRUCE: Page 20, the "Williamson Fresh" 

15 sample i s t h a t BLM sample w e l l . 

16 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. The ch l o r i d e s --

17 t h a t ' s the -- I mean, the Williamson, t h a t i s BLM, 

18 r i g h t ? 

19 MR. BRUCE: That i s BLM. Williamson i s 

20 BLM. 

21 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: And then the "Amoco 

22 Production" i s the current well? 

23 MR. BRUCE: Produced water. 

24 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Produced water from 

25 the --
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1 THE WITNESS: From one of the wel l s w i t h i n 

2 the f i e l d . 

3 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) And the Williamson Fresh, 

4 Mr. Gengler, i s the BLM sample w e l l , correct? 

5 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

6 Q. And 23 years ago, 24, 25 years ago, i t showed 

7 what l e v e l of chlorides? 

8 A. 4,000. 

9 Q. And what does i t c u r r e n t l y show based on the 

10 Xenco Laboratories t e s t ? 

11 A. 1,780. 

12 Q. So the l e v e l of c h l o r i d e s i n the w e l l i s 

13 s u b s t a n t i a l l y lower than i t was 25 years ago? 

14 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

15 Q. And lo o k i n g a t page 

16 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Where i s t h a t 1,780? 

17 I'm look i n g f o r i t . 

18 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) What page i s t h a t 1,780 shown 

19 on, Mr. Gengler? 

20 A. Page 25. 

21 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Oh, okay. You are 

22 t r y i n g t o address some of the questions I have. Okay. 

23 Page 25 i s the same w e l l -- the other w e l l was 4,000, 

24 you said. 1,780. Okay. That's the c h l o r i d e . Okay. 

25 That w i l l answer some of the questions I have. 
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1 Q. {BY MR. BRUCE) And i t appears, Mr. Gengler, 

2 from page 18, the BLM w e l l , the one t h a t you got the 

3 f r e s h -- the new sample from, i s the closest freshwater 

4 w e l l t o the i n j e c t i o n well? 

5 A. Based upon the data we got from the State 

6 Engineer's Web s i t e , t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. So there has been -- based on t h i s , there has 

8 been no adverse e f f e c t s on f r e s h water from i n j e c t i o n 

9 f o r 23 years? 

10 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

11 Q. And based on t h i s data, do you have any reason 

12 t o suspect the mechanical i n t e g r i t y of the i n j e c t i o n 

13 well? 

14 A. No, I do not. 

15 Q. Now, as p a r t of your review, d i d you see a 

16 l e t t e r from the BLM r a i s i n g c e r t a i n o b j e c t i o n s t o the 

17 A. Yes. Yes, I d i d . 

18 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 16? 

19 A. E x h i b i t 16 i s a map w i t h the c i r c l e of the 

20 h a l f - m i l e area of review. I t also has, above the 

21 i n j e c t i o n w e l l , an SWD. Then above each w e l l , there i s 

22 a number corresponding t o the numbers i n the a p p l i c a t i o n 

23 of the o f f s e t w e l l s . This was requested by the BLM. 

24 Q. They asked i f there were cement bond logs on 

25 the w e l l , correct? 
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I v i s i t e d w i t h Wesley Ingram. He asked i f 

2 there were cement bond logs or temperature surveys. 

3 Myself, or someone t h a t I was d i r e c t i n g , contacted both 

4 of the operators t h a t operated the w e l l s t h a t d i d not 

5 have t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n supplied, and they r e p l i e d t o us 

6 t h a t t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n was never run and was not 

7 a v a i l a b l e . I gave t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n t o the BLM, and they 

8 requested t h i s map so t h a t they could update the 

9 i n f o r m a t i o n t o include DV t o o l s , which are not normally 

10 put i n there. But t h i s i s the i n f o r m a t i o n I supplied t o 

11 the BLM. 

12 Q. Were there bond logs on any of the w e l l s w i t h i n 

13 the area of review? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. How many of these wells? 

16 A. I d i d n ' t have t h a t w r i t t e n down. 

17 I show fou r . 

18 Q. And how many DV t o o l s used on them? 

19 A. Of the ones t h a t had cement bond logs or --

20 Q- Others. 

21 A. Others? A l l but one. 

22 Q- A l l but one. 

23 And what good are the DV tools? What i s 

24 th a t showing? 

25 A. The DV t o o l s showed where they pumped the 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
565527f4-c1b9-4e35-a208-55469a800354 



Page 94 

1 second stage of the cement. On every one of those, the 

2 f i r s t stage was pumped, and they c i r c u l a t e d cement o f f 

3 of them. And the second stage i s j u s t from t h a t p o i n t 

4 up as t o where t h a t cement i s going. I n f a c t , the w e l l s 

5 a l l had cement c i r c u l a t e d on the f i r s t stage. I t shows 

6 t h a t there wasn't any f a l l - b a c k from anything pumped 

7 down below t h a t DV t o o l . 

8 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 17? 

9 A. E x h i b i t 17 i s a summation of the c a l c u l a t e d top 

10 of the cement on the we l l s t h a t d i d have a cement bond 

11 l o g , and so there was comparison of the two methods t o 

12 c o r r e l a t e how those compared. 

13 Q. Are a l l of the measured tops of cement w e l l i n 

14 excess of the -- higher than the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l of 

15 t h i s well? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. And would they show t h a t the o f f s e t w e l l s are 

18 p r o p e r l y d r i l l e d and completed and p r o p e r l y cemented, so 

19 there wouldn't be any movement of f l u i d s up those 

20 wellbores? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. I n preparing C-108s, i s i t common t o use 

23 c a l c u l a t e d tops of cement? 

24 A. I f there i s no cement bond or temperature 

25 surveys, t h a t has been a common p r a c t i c e i n the 
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1 i n d u s t r y . 

2 Q. As p a r t of your job at Cimarex, do you review 

3 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l a p p l i c a t i o n s f i l e d by other operators 

4 when Cimarex i s n o t i f i e d of an a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

5 A. Yes, I do. 

6 Q. Do other operators use c a l c u l a t e d tops of 

7 cement? 

8 A. Yes, they do. 

9 Q. And i n your o p i n i o n , i s t h a t a proper way t o 

10 determine the top of cement i n w e l l s o f f s e t t i n g an 

11 i n j e c t i o n well? 

12 A. I f no other i n f o r m a t i o n i s a v a i l a b l e , yes. 

13 Q. Now, you reviewed the o r i g i n a l f i l e on Mallon's 

14 SWD a p p l i c a t i o n , d i d n ' t you? 

15 A. Yes, I d i d . 

16 Q. And d i d any o f f s e t operators object t o the SWD 

17 well? 

18 A. No, they d i d not. 

19 Q. Have any o f f s e t operators objected t o t h i s 

20 a p p l i c a t i o n t o r e i n s t a t e i n j e c t i o n a u t h o r i t y ? 

21 A. No, they have not. 

22 Q. I f there was a problem, would -- suppose 

23 Cimarex was an o f f s e t t o a proposed i n j e c t i o n w e l l l i k e 

24 • t h i s . Would i t object i f there was a problem w i t h the 

25 w e l l c o n s t r u c t i o n of the w e l l s i n the area of review? 
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1 A- Yes, they would. When I review those 

2 a p p l i c a t i o n s , one of the thin g s I do look a t i s , where 

3 i s the top of the cement, where i s the i n j e c t i o n 

4 i n t e r v a l , and would i t have any e f f e c t on our w e l l , 

5 because we would see i t before any contamination would 

6 happen. 

7 Q. Couple of other t h i n g s , and t h i s i s a question 

8 asked of the landman. But was t h i s SWD w e l l t a k i n g 

9 water only from Cimarex w e l l s i n t h i s area? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q- And only from on t h i s s p e c i f i c lease? 

12 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. Mr. Dowdle r e f e r r e d t o t h i s . Did Cimarex shut 

14 i n the w e l l at one p o i n t -- shut i n i t s producing w e l l s 

15 a t one p o i n t t o see i f any other water was being 

16 i n j e c t e d i n t o the SWD? 

17 A. We shut i n a l l w e l l s , and there was no en t r y of 

18 f l u i d i n t o our system, once we shut a l l the we l l s i n . 

19 Q. So no t h i r d p a r t y -- no t h i r d - p a r t y operator --

20 no t h i r d - p a r t y operator's water was taken i n t o t h i s SWD 

21 well? 

22 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

23 Q. And t o the best o f your knowledge, are there 

24 any agreements between Cimarex and a t h i r d - p a r t y 

25 opera tor t o take t h e i r water? 
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A. I saw no agreements by Cimarex or any of the 

2 other operators i n the f i l e s agreeing t o take any other 

3 water from any other company. 

4 Q. Just a couple more t h i n g s , Mr. Gengler. 

5 Cimarex i s not i n j e c t i n g i n t o t h i s water since the 

6 issuance of the p r i o r order, correct? 

7 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

8 Q. What i s being done w i t h Cimarex's produced 

9 water from i t s several w e l l s i n the area? 

10 A. I t ' s being hauled t o commercial disposals. 

11 Q. I s t h a t more expensive than i n j e c t i n g i t i n t o 

12 Cimarex 1s f a c i l i t y ? 

13 A. Yes, i t i s . 

14 Q. What w i l l happen t o Cimarex's producing w e l l s 

15 i f the i n j e c t i o n a u t h o r i t y i s not granted? 

16 A. I t w i l l cause the premature plug and 

17 abandonment of those w e l l s based on economics and loss 

18 of reserves. 

19 Q. Trucking i t out t o t h i r d - p a r t y disposal 

20 f a c i l i t i e s i s more expensive? 

21 A. S i g n i f i c a n t l y more. 

22 Q. S i g n i f i c a n t l y more. 

23 And i f you do not get i n j e c t i o n a u t h o r i t y 

24 at some p o i n t e a r l i e r than using your own i n j e c t i o n 

25 w e l l , w i l l o perating costs exceed production values? 
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Yes. 

2 Q. W i l l t h a t cause waste? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. W i l l t h a t impair Cimarex's c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q- Going back t o one t h i n g , you said Cimarex's 

7 we l l s i n . t h i s area were shut i n and i n j e c t i o n ceased 

8 i n t o the s a l t w a t e r disposal w e l l . You also i n d i c a t e d 

9 th a t t h i s was an i s o l a t e d area f o r Cimarex? 

10 A.. Yes. 

11 Q. So you don't have any -- does Cimarex have any 

12 nearby o f f s e t t i n g producing wells? 

13 A. No. 

14 Q. Just the w e l l s on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r lease? 

15 A. Correct. 

16 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 18, Mr. Gengler? 

17 A. 18 i s an approval from the BLM of our sundry 

18 n o t i c e not ours. Excuse me. Mallon O i l ' s sundry 

19 n o t i c e on t h e i r recompletion of t h i s w e l l i n t o a 

20 sa l t w a t e r disposal w e l l . 

21 Q. I n your review of the w e l l f i l e s , have you ever 

22 seen where t h i s sundry n o t i c e has been revoked by the 

23 BLM? 

24 A. I have not seen anything. 

25 Q. I n i t s operation of the Amoco SWD #1, has 
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1 Cimarex ever received a n o t i c e of v i o l a t i o n i n d i c a t i n g 

2 i t has v i o l a t e d f e d e r a l regulations? 

3 A. No, we have not received any. 

4 Q. Has Cimarex ever received a n o t i c e of v i o l a t i o n 

5 i n d i c a t i n g t h a t i t has not complied w i t h Onshore Order 

6 Number 7? 

7 A. I have not seen any i n the f i l e s . 

8 Q. I n your opinion, i s i t proper t o grant 

9 i n j e c t i o n a u t h o r i t y f o r t h i s well? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. Were E x h i b i t s 12 through 18 e i t h e r prepared by 

12 you or under your supervision or compiled from company 

13 business records? 

14 A. They were. 

15 Q. And i n your opinion, i s the g r a n t i n g of t h i s 

16 a p p l i c a t i o n i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation and the 

17 prevention of waste? 

18 A. Yes, i t i s . 

19 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I'd move the 

20 admission of E x h i b i t s 12 through 18. 

21 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Any objection? 

22 MR. MARTIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: E x h i b i t s 12 through 18 

24 w i l l be admitted. 

25 (Cimarex Energy Company of Colorado E x h i b i t 
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1 Numbers 12 through 18 were o f f e r e d and 

2 admitted i n t o evidence.) 

3 MR. BRUCE: And I have no f u r t h e r questions 

4 of the witness. 

5 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Thank you, 

6 Mr. Counselor. 

7 Mr. Martin? 

8 MR. MARTIN: Thank you. 

9 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

10 BY MR. MARTIN: 

11 Q. Mr. Gengler, I ' l l t r y not t o jump around too 

12 much, but there are a number of t o p i c s I ' d l i k e t o 

13 explore w i t h you. 

14 You j u s t rendered an op i n i o n t h a t i f 

15 Cimarex i s not allowed t o s t a r t i n j e c t i n g i n t o t h i s 

16 p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , t h a t the cost of disposal of t h i s water 

17 at commercial l o c a t i o n s would cause would have such 

18 an impact on production proceeds t h a t you would have 

19 premature s h u t t i n g of the w e l l s . Did I understand t h a t 

20 c o r r e c t l y ? 

21 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

22 Q. Did you p e r s o n a l l y s i t down and look at costs 

23 and revenue streams t o a r r i v e at t h a t conclusion? 

24 A. Yes, I have. 

25 Q. You d i d not b r i n g any o f t h a t data w i t h you 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
565527f4-c1b9-4e35-a208-55469a800354 



Page 101 

1 today, d i d you? 

2 A. No, I d i d not b r i n g i t w i t h me today. 

3 Q. So a l l we have i s your opinion, without any 

4 supporting documents, as t o your statement t h a t t h a t 

5 would be the e f f e c t ? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. And t h a t would, of course, be very dependent 

8 upon what the o i l p r i c e i s -- the conclusion would be 

9 very dependent on what the o i l p r i c e i s ? 

10 A. That i s c o r r e c t , but I w i l l say t h a t we've got 

11 at l e a s t a couple of w e l l s t h a t r i g h t now are e i t h e r 

12 breaking even or j u s t b a r e l y below. So they are r e a l l y 

13 severely impacted, and we'd probably be prematurely 

14 plugging [ s i c ] i n t o the very near f u t u r e i f t h i s i s n ' t 

15 r e i n s t a t e d . 

16 Q. But, again, you haven't presented any act u a l 

17 data t o r e f l e c t t h a t o pinion, have you? 

18 A. No, I have not. 

19 Q. You also t e s t i f i e d t h a t only water from Cimarex 

20 w e l l s was being i n j e c t e d i n t o t h i s w e l l . You have not 

21 p e r s o n a l l y stayed out on t h a t s i t e and observed sources 

22 of i n j e c t i o n i n t o t h a t w e l l , have you? 

23 A. No, I have not. 

24 Q. So your o p i n i o n i s j u s t r e l i e d upon by you 

25 l o o k i n g a t records i n a f i l e ? Did I understand t h a t 
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1 c o r r e c t l y ? 

2 A. My op i n i o n i s based upon l o o k i n g at the volumes 

3 t h a t were measured o f f of the w e l l s t h a t are c u r r e n t l y 

4 Cimarex operated and comparing t h a t data t o the a c t u a l 

5 volumes t h a t were a c t u a l l y i n j e c t e d i n t o the w e l l . And 

6 absent any discrepancies of measurement, they appear t o 

7 be f a i r l y close. 

8 Q. So t h a t i s your source of opinion? 

9 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

10 Q. But you can't s i t i n t h i s room today and 

11 t e s t i f y under oath t h a t you're sure there hasn't been 

12 i n j e c t i o n of water i n t o t h a t w e l l from t h i r d p a r t i e s , 

13 can you? 

14 A. Like you said, I have not sat on l o c a t i o n . 

15 Q. Let me ask you, i f I may, about volumes. Let 

16 me f i n d one of the e x h i b i t s here. One of my bad h a b i t s , 

17 Mr. Gengler, i s t h a t I make the biggest mess i n the 

18 world when I'm moving paperwork around. 

19 E x h i b i t 13. 

2 0 A. 13, okay. 

21 Q. As I understand t h i s , t h i s i s data on the pump 

22 t h a t i s c u r r e n t l y on the i n j e c t i o n w e l l ; i s t h a t 

23 c o r r e c t , s i r ? 

24 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

25 Q. Do you know how long t h a t pump's been on t h a t 
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1 i n j e c t i o n well? 

2 A. I t shows i n the records t h a t t h a t i s the pump 

3 t h a t Mallon O i l put out there. 

4 Q. So from what you've looked a t , t h i s i s the 

5 o r i g i n a l pump? 

6 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. I n your years of experience, i s i t somewhat 

8 unusual t o have a pump l a s t t h a t l e n g t h of time, 23, 24 

9 years? 

10 A. I f p r o p e r l y maintained, yes [ s i c ] . 

11 Q. That leads me -- you t e s t i f i e d t h a t t h i s pump 

12 had the capacity of p u t t i n g c e r t a i n volumes i n t o the 

13 w e l l , as I understand i t . 

14 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

15 Q. Let me go t o your E x h i b i t 12 f o r a minute. 

16 This creates a great deal of puzzlement f o r me, and I 

17 want t o go through t h i s , i f I may. Recognize -- I'm 

18 t a l k i n g places -- periods of time t h a t Cimarex d i d not 

19 own t h i s p a r t i c u l a r -- wasn't operating out there, would 

20 be a b e t t e r way t o say i t . But l e t ' s look at 1994, f o r 

21 instance. 

2 2 A. Okay. 

23 Q. I am seeing amounts of 16,145, 16,980 i n t h a t 

24 p a r t i c u l a r year. That exceeds the 1,600 BPW [ s i c ] t h a t 

25 was i n the o r i g i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n , doesn't i t ? 
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1 A. No. 

2 Q. Why does i t not? 

3 A. That's a monthly volume; 30 days i n a month. 

4 Q. You're saying t h a t 1,600 -- what i s the 1,600 

5 f i g u r e i n the o r i g i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

6 A. That's the b a r r e l s per day. 

7 Q. Per day. Okay. 

8 So you don't see anything on page 1 t h a t 

9 would exceed the per day? 

10 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

11 Q- On page 2, do you see anything t h a t would 

12 exceed that? 

13 A. No, I do not. 

14 Q. And then we f i n a l l y get t o page 3. Do you see 

15 anything on t h a t page t h a t would exceed that? 

16 A. Yes, the August 1999 t h a t I p r e v i o u s l y t a l k e d 

17 about. 

18 Q. And your testimony i s t h a t t h a t i s p h y s i c a l l y 

19 impossible? 

20 A. With t h a t pump, yes. 

21 Q. Do you have any explanation of why the OCD 

22 records would r e f l e c t t h a t l e v e l of i n j e c t i o n ? 

23 A. I could only speculate. 

24 Q. So you don't know? 

25 A. No. 
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1 Q. And then we go t o page 4 -- we go t o page 4, 

2 and I t h i n k you've got at l e a s t -- or you've got March, 

3 I b e l i e v e . You t a l k e d about i t ; d i d you not? 

4 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

5 Q. And, again, I assume your testimony i s the 

6 same. That's p h y s i c a l l y impossible? 

7 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

8 Q. But you have no explanation as t o why the OCD 

9 records would r e f l e c t t h a t l e v e l of i n j e c t i o n ? 

10 A. A l l I can do i s speculate i t was a 

11 typographical e r r o r . 

12 Q. And would t h a t be your testimony a l l the way 

13 through these p a r t i c u l a r OCD records t h a t are your 

14 E x h i b i t 12? 

15 A. With the exception of the time t h a t Cimarex was 

16 the operator, I have no records. 

17 Q. And you gave some explanation f o r t h a t issue, 

18 i f I understood you c o r r e c t l y ? 

19 A. Which issue are you speaking about? 

20 Q. Well, I thought we were t a l k i n g about -- t h a t 

21 was pressure. I'm sorry. You gave an explanation on 

22 pressure. 

23 L e t ' s go on through here j u s t a moment, i f 

24 we may. By the t ime Cimarex became opera tor , do we have 

25 any months where we have the p r o d u c t i o n exceeding the 
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1 1,600 f i g u r e ? 

2 A. No, we do not. 

3 Q. Just a moment, please. 

4 As I understand the pressure issue, we have 

5 had instances where there has been -- pressure has 

6 been -- 64 0 p s i has been -- there have been times when 

7 the pressure on t h a t w e l l has exceeded the 640 p s i ; i s 

8 t h a t correct? 

9 A. Where are you coming up w i t h the 640 psi? 

10 Q. I s n ' t t h a t p a r t of what's i n the o r i g i n a l 

11 a p p l i c a t i o n ? Am I not c o r r e c t on that? 

12 A. I don't have t h a t i n f r o n t of me, but the order 

13 granted 8 -- I don't have the order i n f r o n t of me. 

14 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: 804. 

15 A. 804. 

16 Q. (BY MR. MARTIN) Have there been periods when 

17 the 804 has been exceeded? 

18 A. Just a very few. Again, I addressed those. 

19 Q. And your explanation t h a t I heard covers a l l of 

20 those instances; i s t h a t correct? 

21 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

22 Q. Let's jump t o another t o p i c . You gave 

23 explanation about the BLM l e t t e r . I want t o make sure 

24 t h a t we a l l understand. The BLM, t o your knowledge, has 

25 not withdrawn i t s o b j e c t i o n t o the g r a n t i n g of t h i s 
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1 a p p l i c a t i o n , has i t ? 

2 A. To my knowledge, no. 

3 Q. And the BLM also -- l e t me get t o the BLM 

4 l e t t e r here. The BLM has objected t o the use of 

5 c a l c u l a t e d cement -- l e t me f i n d t h a t l e t t e r . I'm not 

6 saying i t e x a c t l y c o r r e c t l y . Let me f i n d the l e t t e r . 

7 Just a moment, please. 

8 The BLM has not withdrawn i t s o b j e c t i o n t o 

9 the use of the c a l c u l a t e d number f o r the cement tops, 

10 has i t ? 

11 A. Not t h a t I'm aware o f . 

12 Q. And since t h i s i s f e d e r a l mineral r i g h t and 

13 f e d e r a l lease, while you t e s t i f i e d about what was 

14 customary i n p r a c t i c e on t h i s issue, i s n ' t , i n f a c t , 

15 what i s c r i t i c a l here i s what the BLM i s r e q u i r i n g since 

16 t h i s i s f e d e r a l minerals and they've got co n t r o l ? 

17 A. Yes. I spoke t o Wesley Ingram l a s t week. I 

18 updated him on a l l the i n f o r m a t i o n I received from the 

19 o f f s e t operators, informed him t h a t t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n was 

20 not a v a i l a b l e . I gave him the DV t o o l depths, and he 

21 asked me t o send a l l t h a t t o him so he could document i t 

22 i n h i s f i l e . 

23 Q. To t h i s date, the BLM has not changed i t s 

24 p o s i t i o n on the c a l c u l a t e d issue, has i t ? 

25 A. As f a r as I know, no. 
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1 MR. MARTIN: May I have j u s t one minute? 

2 Q. (BY MR. MARTIN) The BLM has also objected t o 

3 the permit f o r t h i s i n j e c t i o n w e l l on the basis t h a t 

4 Cimarex needs t o do f u r t h e r research on freshwater w e l l s 

5 i n the area. Are you aware of t h a t objection? 

6 A. Yes. I discussed t h a t w i t h Wesley. 

7 Q. And the only one t h a t t h e r e 1 s been any sampling 

8 on i s t h i s w i n d m i l l w e l l on the BLM property? 

9 A. That i s c o r r e c t . I asked our land department 

10 t o get permission t o sample. That i s the only w e l l t h a t 

11 we received permission t o sample. 

12 Q. Are you aware t h a t the reason there was an 

13 o b j e c t i o n t o Cimarex coming on Ross Ranch prop e r t y and 

14 sampling any of the others i s because there has not been 

15 any type of surface owners any agreement under the 

16 Surface Owners P r o t e c t i o n Act worked out? 

17 A. No. That's beyond my e x p e r t i s e . 

18 Q. You don't have any of t h a t knowledge? 

19 A. That's beyond my e x p e r t i s e . I r e l y on our land 

20 department f o r t h a t . 

21 Q. So the key t h i n g , from your testimony, t h a t 

22 Cimarex needs i s , they need t o have t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n 

23 approved so they can s t a r t i n again -- or s t a r t i n using 

24 t h i s i n j e c t i o n well? That's the c r i t i c a l need, from 

25 your testimony; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 
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1 A. Correct. 

2 Q. So r e t r o a c t i v e i s immaterial t o you, i s n 1 t i t ? 

3 I t ' s g e t t i n g the a u t h o r i t y t o go forward from t h i s day 

4 forward? I s n ' t t h a t what you're r e a l l y seeking here? 

5 A. I can't answer t h a t question. I can only 

6 answer the p a r t t h a t a f f e c t s my job , which i s production 

7 and expenses on o i l and gas w e l l s . The other p a r t , I 

8 can't answer. 

9 Q. You also t e s t i f i e d about t h i s w e l l , and i f I 

10 understood -- I'm t a l k i n g about the i n j e c t i o n w e l l . You 

11 t a l k e d about how t o complete i t . Have you -- t o your 

12 knowledge, has there been any studies or t e s t s done t o 

13 check the cu r r e n t i n t e g r i t y of the w e l l , i t s casing and 

14 i t s cement? I t ' s been there f o r a long time. 

15 A. The OCD i s i n charge of doing t h a t . They 

16 r e g u l a r l y schedule mechanical i n t e g r i t y t e s t s , and t h i s 

17 w e l l has passed every mechanical i n t e g r i t y t e s t t h a t was 

18 done. 

19 Q. To your knowledge, when was the l a s t time t h a t 

20 was done? 

21 A. I don't have t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n w i t h me. 

22 Q. So Cimarex has not on i t s own attempted t o do 

23 any type of i n t e g r i t y t e s t i n support of t h i s 

24 a p p l i c a t i o n , have you? 

25 A. We monitor the pressures on the casing and on 
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1 the annulus f o r our own i n f o r m a t i o n , and t h a t 

2 i n f o r m a t i o n i s looked a t on a r e g u l a r basis. And any 

3 changes w i t h i n the pressure would i n d i c a t e a leak, would 

4 throw up a red f l a g , and we would i n v e s t i g a t e f u r t h e r . 

5 Q. But other than t h a t , Cimarex has done no 

6 independent t e s t s or anal y s i s regarding i n t e g r i t y f o r 

7 purposes of supporting t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n . That i s 

8 c o r r e c t ; i s n ' t i t ? 

9 A. I would say monitoring the annulus and the 

10 casings are e x a c t l y t h a t . 

11 Q. That's a l l . Thank you. 

12 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Any r e d i r e c t ? 

13 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

14 BY MR. BRUCE: 

15 Q. Just one question. Mr. Gengler, you said the 

16 OCD p e r i o d i c a l l y r e q u i r e s mechanical i n t e g r i t y t e s t s . 

17 The OCD doesn't do those t e s t s i t s e l f , correct? 

18 A. No. They witness the t e s t . 

19 Q. They witness the t e s t . The t e s t i s arranged by 

20 the operator, who h i r e s a c o n t r a c t o r t o do t h a t t e s t ? 

21 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

22 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, 

23 Mr. Examiner. 
24 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Any cross? 

25 MR. MARTIN: No. 
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1 EXAMINER BROOKS: No questions. 

2 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

3 BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM: 

4 Q. Mr. Gengler, how o f t e n do you maintain t h i s --

5 since you acquired the p r o p e r t y from Mallon O i l , how 

6 o f t e n do you maintain t h i s 

7 A. We do y e a r l y maintenance, and we do checks on 

8 i t every month, and we have people t h a t maintain t h a t 

9 pump. And t h a t ' s p a r t of what they do; they're a t h i r d 

10 p a r t y . 

11 Q. Let's go back t o t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n sheet, 

12 E x h i b i t 14. That i s the pump-out, you know -- the 

13 pump-out i s close t o what? You know, as -- as an 

14 engineer, I l i k e t o l e v e l the access. I don't know. 

15 This access i s not l e v e l . 

16 A. Yes, i t i s . 

17 Q. Can you t e l l me what i s going on? What i s 

18 your --

19 A. On the right-hand side of the graph i s the 

20 accesses f o r the t u b i n g pressure. 

21 Q. On the r i g h t hand? 

22 A. Yeah. You can see tu b i n g pressure -- on the 

23 right-hand i s the water i n j e c t i o n . I t says "MCF." That 

24 was a mistake. I t should be b a r r e l s per day. 

25 Q. I was confused w i t h MCF. Are you t a l k i n g about 
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2 A. No. I t ' s b a r r e l s . That was a typo. 

3 Q. Are you t a l k i n g about 1,000 b a r r e l s per day? 

4 A. 1,000? 

5 Q. Do I consider MCFs? 

6 A. Yeah, t h a t should be b a r r e l s , not MCFs. 

7 

8 

Q. 

not 1, 

Okay. So t h a t would be b a r r e l s per day, 

000 b a r r e l s per day, r i g h t ? 

not - -

9 A. That's c o r r e c t , b a r r e l s per day. 

10 Q- That's a thousand d i f f e r e n c e from --

11 A. No. I t ' s b a r r e l s per day. 

12 Q. On the l e f t - h a n d side i s the q u a n t i t y of water 

13 i n j e c t e d ? 

14 A. Correct. 

15 Q. And then on the right-hand side i s your tu b i n g 

16 pressure, which I'm i n t e r e s t e d i n . Okay. 

17 Does t h i s i n d i c a t e ( i n d i c a t i n g ) the amount 

18 of red [ s i c ] t h a t i s inj e c t e d ? 

19 A. Correct. 

20 Q. And t h i s i s your tu b i n g pressure? 

21 A. No. The black i s the t u b i n g pressure. 

22 Q. Okay. Oh, okay. I was l o o k i n g a t -- okay. 

23 A. And the blue i s the r i g h t . 

24 Q. Is the what? 

25 A. Blue i s the r i g h t b a r r e l s per day. 
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1 Q. That's why you should have some symbols, t o 

2 t e l l me which one i s which, so I can --

3 A. I apologize. 

4 Q. I l i k e t o l e v e l the access, so I know what I'm 

5 doing. 

6 You sai d i t ' s c o n s i s t e n t l y below 1,000 

7 pounds -- 1,000 pounds. Okay. 

8 And then the i n j e c t i o n r a t e -- the 

9 i n j e c t i o n r a t e doesn't r e a l l y have a meaning because 

10 i t ' s not i n the order. I t might be i n the a p p l i c a t i o n , 

11 but i t ' s not i n the order. 

12 Okay. Let's go back t o work. Normally I 

13 s t a r t w i t h the c o n s t r u c t i o n of the i n j e c t i o n w e l l , 

14 because t h a t ' s what's most important t o me. Let me see 

15 i f I can f i n d i t . Let me look at Form C-108. Okay. 

16 Let's get the -- okay. Do you have t h a t , on page 5? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. Okay. Now, t h a t ' s -- t h i s w e l l i s c u r r e n t l y 

19 shut i n , r i g h t ? 

20 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

21 Q. C u r r e n t l y shut i n , but t h i s i s the way i t has 

22 been i n j e c t i n g a l l the time? 

23 A. That's c o r r e c t . There's been no work done t o 

24 t h i s w e l l . 

25 Q. As your tes t imony i n d i c a t e s , t h i s w e l l has 
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1 passed mechanical i n t e g r i t y every f i v e years as re q u i r e d 

2 by the regul a t i o n s ? 

3 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

4 Q. Now, the top of cement, 720, i s t h a t the 

5 c a l c u l a t e d maximum bond log? 

6 A. Maximum bond l o g . 

7 Q. Do you have logs here t h a t demonstrate t h a t 

8 information? 

9 A. No, I d i d not b r i n g them w i t h me. They were 

10 f i l e d w i t h the OCD. 

11 Q. They were f i l e d w i t h the OCD? 

12 A. ( I n d i c a t i n g . ) 

13 Q. This w e l l -- cement bond logs? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. And i t i s 720? 

16 A. 2,720. 

17 Q. 2,720 i s the top of the -- there i s a cement 

18 bond l o g , not calculated? 

19 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

20 Q. Now, l e t ' s examine -- based on the c a l c u l a t e d 

21 and measured, l e t ' s go back t o your area of review. One 

22 of the questions I wanted t o ask of you on the area of 

23 review: How many w e l l s are i n the area of review? How 

24 many w e l l s do you have i n the area of review? 

25 A. 13. 
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2 A. 13 . 

3 Q- I thought I saw ten. 

4 How many are plugged and abandoned? 

5 A. Two. 

6 Q. What? 

7 A. Two. 

8 Q. Okay. Two PA1d. 

9 How many are producing? 

10 A. 11. 

11 Q- So t h a t makes 13. Okay. 

12 Let's go back t o E x h i b i t Number 17. Of the 

13 fou r w e l l s -- what i s the stat u s of those f o u r w e l l s , 

14 Amoco Federal #3, 4; 1Y Pecos Federal; EP-USA #6? What 

15 i s the status? 

16 A. Producing. 

17 Q. They are producing? 

18 A. Correct. 

19 Q- Okay. Now, the way top of cement i s 

20 c a l c u l a t e d . Measure top of cement by CBL? 

21 A- CBL. 

22 Q- And these are producing wells? 

23 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

24 Q- Why d i d you choose those f o u r out of 11 

25 producing wells? 
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Those are the only f o u r t h a t had cement bond 

2 logs f o r me t o compare t o -- t o measure t o the 

3 c a l c u l a t e d . 

4 Q- Okay. Good. 

5 Now, the r e s t , seven, are c a l c u l a t e d , 

6 r i g h t ? 

7 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

8 Q. So out of 11 producing w e l l s , 4 have cement 

9 bond logs? 

10 A. { I n d i c a t i n g . ) 

11 Q. And you can see the d i f f e r e n c e between the 

12 c a l c u l a t e d and the cement bond l o g . Okay. Good. So 

13 l e t me w r i t e t h a t f o u r have cement bond logs, and seven 

14 c a l c u l a t e d , r i g h t ? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. But they are a l l producing wells? 

17 A. Correct. 

18 Q. So your testimony today i s t h a t since 1989, no 

19 w e l l has come i n t o focus i n the area of review? 

20 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

21 Q. Between these w e l l s , no new we l l s have been 

22 d r i l l e d ? 

23 A. There i s a s l i g h t d i f f e r e n c e between the 

24 o r i g i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n and the current a p p l i c a t i o n . 

25 Q. What i s the s l i g h t d i f f e r e n c e ? 
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1 A. They had 12 w e l l s . They considered one w e l l 

2 outside of the area of review, and we considered i t i n . 

3 Q. I'm sor r y . Can you repeat that? They have 

4 what ? 

5 A. They had one w e l l t h a t they considered j u s t 

6 b a r e l y outside of the h a l f - m i l e radius area of review. 

7 Q. "They considered." Who i s t h a t "they"? 

8 A. Mallon. 

9 Q. Oh, okay. 

10 A. And we considered i t j u s t i n . I t ' s r i g h t on 

11 the l i n e , so t h a t ' s where the e x t r a w e l l came from, 13 

12 instead of the 12 t h a t were i n the o r i g i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n . 

13 Q. So i n 1989, Mallon may have submitted 12, but 

14 now you have submitted 13, and there has been no change? 

15 A. Correct. A l l those w e l l s were d r i l l e d before 

16 Mallon's a p p l i c a t i o n . 

17 Q. And a l l t h i s area of review has penetrated the 

18 i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l ? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. A l l of them? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. I n c l u d i n g the producing and the plugged and 

23 abandoned. And here are we going t o see the two plugged 

24 and abandoned w e l l s t o see i f they are p r o p e r l y plugged 

25 and abandoned, on the C-108? 
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2 Q. I s a i d your plugged and abandoned w e l l s -

3 A. Okay. 

4 Q. and the a p p l i c a t i o n s --

5 A. Yeah. 14 and 15. 

6 Q. So you chose t o demonstrate your c a l c u l a t i o n on 

7 

8 

the cement bond l o g and measure cement bond log --

mean, measure the top of cement bond l o g and j u s t 

i 

9 forward t h a t a v a i l a b l e [ s i c ] ? 

10 A. ( I n d i c a t i n g . ) 

11 Q. Okay. That's what you said, r i g h t ? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. The data i s not avail a b l e ? 

14 A. Correct. 

15 Q. Because they are producing wells? 

16 A. Correct, and they weren't running --

17 Q. Do you know the m a j o r i t y of the operators on 

18 those producing wells? 

19 A. There are two operators. 

20 Q- How many? Two operators? 

21 A. Two. 

22 Q. Okay. You being one? 

23 A. No. Two other operators i n a d d i t i o n t o 

24 Cimarex. 

25 Q- So there are about three operators. Okay. 
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1 A. Six of those w e l l s t h a t I c a l c u l a t e d came from 

2 one operator and one from another. 

3 Q. Sometime during the testimony, your counselor 

4 asked you what are the pressures requested of the 

5 o r i g i n a l operator. I d i d n ' t want t o cut i n . What are 

6 the pressures requested by the o r i g i n a l operator? Do 

7 you know what pressure they requested, apart from .2 

8 p s i --

9 A. From best of my memory, I don't t h i n k I have 

10 the o r i g i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n . 

11 Q. Yeah. But what would you be r e q u i r i n g ? What 

12 would you be requesting? 

13 A. We are requesting .2 p s i . 

14 Q. You're not requesting an increase i n pressure? 

15 A. We're not asking f o r an increase i n pressure. 

16 Q. So the -- w i l l do the work? 

17 A. That's c o r r e c t . We've taken steps t o make sure 

18 t h a t the pressure doesn't t h a t they speed the pump up 

19 so t h a t won't be exceeded anymore. 

20 Q. Now, when we t a l k e d about the i n j e c t i o n water 

21 and the formation water, what i s the concentration of 

22 the formation water? 

23 A. The concentration? 

24 Q. I mean, what i s the c h l o r i d e content. Let's 

25 s t a r t there. 
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That i s E x h i b i t 19. 

2 MR. BRUCE: Page 19. 

3 A. Page 19 of t h a t e x h i b i t . I t ' s 175,000 f o r t h a t 

4 w e l l . 

5 Q. (BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM) For i n j e c t i n g water from 

6 the c h l o r i d e content i n t o the 175? 

7 A. Maybe I misunderstood the o r i g i n a l question. 

8 Q. Okay. The o r i g i n a l question -- okay. Let me 

9 go - - I t h i n k you're on page 19, r i g h t ? 

10 A. Page 19 of the C-108. 

11 Q- Like Mr. Ma r t i n , I can be confused. 

12 A. The C-108 a p p l i c a t i o n . E x h i b i t Number 15, page 

13 19. 

14 Q. Okay. Yeah. Okay. Page 19. Okay. The 

15 c h l o r i d e content i n t h i s w e l l i s 175,000. I s t h a t the 

16 c h l o r i d e content i n the Cherry Canyon Formation? 

17 A. I n t h a t p a r t i c u l a r zone t h a t they are producing 

18 from, yes. 

19 Q. Okay. Now, t h i s w e l l was done i n 2013. And 

20 then i n 1988, p r i o r t o the issuance of t h i s order, i t 

21 was 189. 

22 A. That was --my best guess i s , t h a t was from a 

23 d i f f e r e n t w e l l t h a t has s l i g h t l y d i f f e r e n t c h l o r i d e 

24 concentrations. 

25 Q- Now, you j u s t s a i d t h a t you wanted t o determine 
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1 whether there was other water t o be i n j e c t e d i n t o t h i s 

2 w e l l , so you shut i n a l l of your w e l l s , r i g h t ? 

3 A. Correct. 

4 Q. Did you shut i n a l l the w e l l s p r i m a r i l y 

5 because of t h a t purpose? Did you j u s t shut i t i n t o see 

6 i f there i s any water going i n t o the i n j e c t i o n w e l l , 

7 j u s t because of that? 

8 A. No. We had other t h i n g s going on. We needed 

9 t o shut a l l the w e l l s i n . 

10 Q. I'm glad you s a i d t h a t , because you can't shut 

11 i n those w e l l s j u s t t o know whether -- you should know 

12 whether you have bad water from any other operators. 

13 A. No. We had other issues t h a t we needed t o shut 

14 a l l the w e l l s i n t e m p o r a r i l y . 

15 Q. Temporarily, because I don't want you t o induce 

16 waste. 

17 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

18 Q. These are o i l w e l l s , r i g h t ? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. You can't j u s t shut i n the w e l l without having 

21 a reason. 

22 A. No. 

23 Q. When you sa i d t h a t , you know, my head got red. 

24 You can't j u s t shut i n your w e l l t o determine whether 

25 you are doing -- from any other operators. You should 
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1 know whether -- what type of water i s being i n j e c t e d i n 

2 there, r i g h t ? 

3 A. Right. And we had a l l the w e l l s shut i n f o r 

4 another reason, and t h a t was j u s t --we got no 

5 a d d i t i o n a l water pumped i n t o our tanks. 

6 Q. Very good. When you s a i d t h a t -- operator put 

7 water i n t o your w e l l . We are not ther e . You should 

8 know, whether from me or not, you should not shut i n the 

9 w e l l . Okay. Very good. 

10 Because t h i s case i s contested, you 

11 decided -- you have an economic an a l y s i s t h a t you d i d 

12 t h a t shows i f we d i d n ' t approve t h i s SWD, you would run 

13 i n t o economic melee [ s i c ] or something. Did you 

14 a c t u a l l y do a c a l c u l a t i o n t o demonstrate that? Did you 

15 a c t u a l l y do some c a l c u l a t i o n t o say: I f we continue t o 

16 t r u c k water, these w e l l s w i l l not be economic again 

17 because of the amount we spend i n trucking? 

18 A. Yes. What I d i d was, I looked at what the --

19 since the newest order come [ s i c ] out and we had t o shut 

20 the s a l t w a t e r disposal i n , I'm l o o k i n g at the economics 

21 a f t e r t h a t as compared t o the economics before t h a t , and 

22 l o o k i n g at the cost numbers and saying, you know, 

23 without a huge change i n product p r i c i n g , there would be 

24 several w e l l s t h a t are on the bubble. 

25 Q. How many complaints have you gotten since you 
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s t a r t e d i n 2005, because you don't know what happened 

2 before 2005? How many complaints have you received from 

3 anybody about i n j e c t i n g t o t h i s well? How many 

4 complaints? 

5 A. None t h a t I'm aware o f . 

6 Q. Except from BLM? 

7 A. F i r s t t h i n g t h a t I know of a complaint about 

8 t h i s w e l l was when Ross Ranch brought up the p o i n t t h a t 

9 they weren't n o t i f i e d . There was no complaints from the 

10 BLM about how we were operating t h a t w e l l t h a t I'm aware 

11 o f . 

12 Q- At l e a s t Ross Ranch i s a complaint? 

13 A. Right. 

14 Q. They complained t o you t h a t they d i d n ' t get 

15 n o t i c e r i g h t ? 

16 A. Right. That's a l l I'm aware o f . 

17 Q. What d i d they t e l l you? 

18 A. I t was secondhand knowledge t o me, but they 

19 were --- I found out t h a t they were asking t h a t the 

20 permit be revoked because they weren't n o t i f i e d , and 

21 t h a t ' s when I was p u l l e d i n t o t h i s . 

22 Q. Okay. Nothing f u r t h e r . You may step down. 

23 MR. MARTIN: I have an a d d i t i o n a l question, 

24 i f I may, maybe two or three here. 

25 
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1 RECROSS EXAMINATION 

2 BY MR. MARTIN: 

3 Q. Mr. Gengler, I r e a l i z e d I f a i l e d t o ask you a 

4 question or two i n r e l a t i o n t o t h i s l e t t e r from the BLM. 

5 I'm l o o k i n g at t h a t l e t t e r now, and there i s a sentence 

6 i n here t h a t says: "The w e l l w i l l be re q u i r e d t o have 

7 an annulus monitoring system t h a t i s open t o atmosphere 

8 since the cement behind the proposed i n j e c t i o n casing 

9 does not t i e back i n t o the previous casing s t r i n g . " Are 

10 you aware of t h a t requirement? 

11 A. I saw t h a t on the l e t t e r . 

12 Q. Does Cimarex have an i n t e n t of p u t t i n g i n an 

13 annulus monitoring system? 

14 A. I f the BLM would r e q u i r e t h a t , yes, we would do 

15 t h a t . 

16 Q. What i s your understanding of why one would be 

17 necessary? I s i t because there i s a question of the 

18 i n t e g r i t y of the cement because i t does not t i e back 

19 i n t o the previous casing s t r i n g ? 

20 A. No. I t h i n k t h a t -- you know, i t ' s my op i n i o n 

21 t h a t the BLM has f e l t l i k e some operators, not a l l , 

22 obviously, have not monitored t h e i r casings on a re g u l a r 

23 basis like.Cimarex does, and they have s t a r t e d asking 

24 t h a t operators do t h i s . I'm not sure i t ' s an a c t u a l 

2 5 r u l e t h a t they've come out w i t h , but i t ' s a v o l u n t a r y 
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1 t h i n g t h a t they've asked t o be done. 

2 Q. I s n ' t the reason f o r t h i s requirement because 

3 the BLM has a concern about the i n t e g r i t y of the cement 

4 i n the casing i n t h i s well? 

5 A. That's a question f o r the BLM. 

6 Q. I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l . 

7 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Thank you, Mr. Ma r t i n . 

8 Mr. Bruce? 

9 MR. BRUCE: I have nothing f u r t h e r of t h i s 

10 witness. 

11 EXAMINER BROOKS: I have nothing. 

12 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. You may be 

13 excused. 

14 Mr. Marti n , how long i s your case going t o 

15 be? 

16 MR. MARTIN: I f you can give me about f o u r 

17 minutes t o t a l k t o my c l i e n t , and I need t o t a l k t o 

18 Mr. Bruce, I can t e l l you e x a c t l y what we're going t o 

19 need. I may be able t o short c i r c u i t t h i s whole t h i n g . 

20 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Very good. Let's take 

21 f i v e minutes. 

22 (Break taken, 12:10 p.m. t o 12:15 p.m.) 

23 MR. MARTIN: Mr. Hearing Examiner, we are 

24 not going t o put any testimony on. We're going t o move 

25 i n t r o d u c t i o n of our e x h i b i t s . I believe they are 1 
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1 through -- l e t me look a t my numbers. 

2 MR. BRUCE: 6. 

3 MR. MARTIN: 6. You already have those. 

4 Mr. Bruce has i n d i c a t e d he has no o b j e c t i o n . 

5 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. Good. 

6 MR. BRUCE: I have no o b j e c t i o n . 

7 MR. MARTIN: And my only other comment i s , 

8 r a t h e r than us spending time doing a bunch of o r a l 

9 argument a t the end, I would suggest t h a t we be given an 

10 o p p o r t u n i t y t o e i t h e r submit w r i t t e n argument or a 

11 proposed order. 

12 MR. BRUCE: And I ' d agree t o t h a t . I t h i n k 

13 both p a r t i e s can summarize a l o t more concisely i f we do 

14 t h a t . 

15 The only t h i n g I would ask i s , the t i m i n g 

16 on the submission -- I ' d ask u n t i l September 6th --

17 MR. MARTIN: That's f i n e w i t h me. 

18 MR. BRUCE: -- j u s t because I have -- and I 

19 t h i n k the court r e p o r t e r s a i d she wouldn't be ready f o r 

2 0 about a week or so w i t h the t r a n s c r i p t , and I have a 

21 bunch of junk I've got t o do over the next couple of 

22 weeks. So I would p r e f e r a September 6th date f o r the 

23 submission of the proposed order or o r a l argument -- I 

24 mean w r i t t e n argument. 

25 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: I'm going t o extend i t 
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1 more than t h a t , i f there i s no o b j e c t i o n , because 11m 

2 j u s t b u r i e d . I won't get t o t h i s by September 6th. 

3 There are a l o t more -- there are some hearings from the 

4 beginning of t h i s year t h a t I haven't even gotten t o . 
5 So I don't have time. So i f you could take -- i f there 

6 i s no urgency or no environmental impediments, I would 

7 even say t o , you know, mid-September or end of September 

8 so t h a t you guys can get on w i t h i t . Submit --

9 MR. BRUCE: To work w i t h your schedule, I 

10 would suggest i t would be probably Friday the 13th. 

11 MR. MARTIN: That's a good day ( l a u g h t e r ) . 

12 MR. BRUCE: I f we have an issue or i f you 

13 ( i n d i c a t i n g ) have an issue, we could ask f o r more time. 

14 MR. MARTIN: That's f i n e . 

15 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Let me -- l e t me get a 

16 consensus. September 13th, you are going t o submit a 

17 c l o s i n g statement and a d r a f t order from each party? 

18 MR. BRUCE: That i s c o r r e c t . 

19 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: This w i l l also help me 

20 know what's going on, too. So submit your c l o s i n g 

21 statements so we don't have t o deal w i t h i t today and a 

22 proposed order on September l e t me w r i t e i t down. 

23 MR. BRUCE: Friday, the 13th. 

24 MR. MARTIN: Friday, the 13th. 

25 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: As you said, i t ' s a 
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1 good day. 

2 EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I remember 

3 remarking one time i n a p a r t i c u l a r case, when counsel 

4 suggested t h a t we set i t f o r t r i a l on October 31st, t h a t 

5 t h a t was appropriate because there were a l o t of thin g s 

6 i n t h a t case t h a t seemed a l o t l i k e Halloween. 

7 {Laughter.) 

8 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: So we submit c l o s i n g 

9 statements and d r a f t order on September 13. That's a 

10 Friday, r i g h t ? 

11 MR. MARTIN: Yes. 

12 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: I s t h a t okay w i t h the 

13 p a r t i e s ? 

14 MR. BRUCE: Yes. 

15 MR. MARTIN: ( I n d i c a t i n g . ) 

16 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: That's wonderful. 

17 Are there any other proceedings the 

18 Examiner should know? 

19 MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

2 0 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. Very good. 

21 EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I would remark t h a t 

22 p a r t i e s may want t o address i n t h e i r b r i e f s the 

23 question from Cimarex's p o i n t of view, what 

24 d i f f e r e n c e does i t make whether or not we make t h i s 

25 order r e t r o a c t i v e or whether we make i t e f f e c t i v e from 
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1 the day of i t s issuance other than, of course, the 

2 p o s s i b i l i t y t h a t the D i v i s i o n might b r i n g an enforcement 

3 a c t i o n , which I t h i n k you and I have been around here 

4 long enough t o know t h a t ' s probably very u n l i k e l y . 

5 MR. BRUCE: I was going t o address t h a t , 

6 and I'm sure Mr. Martin was going t o address i t . 

7 MR. MARTIN: ( I n d i c a t i n g . ) 

8 EXAMINER BROOKS: The other one question 

9 being -- Mr. Ma r t i n touched on t h i s . For common-law 

10 reasons, j u d i c i a l reasons, he's ur g i n g t h a t we don't 

11 have the a u t h o r i t y t o make a r e t r o a c t i v e -- t o issue a 

12 r e t r o a c t i v e -- I know t h a t we have s t a t u t o r y a u t h o r i t y 

13 t o make compulsory p o o l i n g orders r e t r o a c t i v e . I n f a c t , 

14 we're d i r e c t e d t o do so, but I don't know anything about 

15 whether there i s any issue of -- other than compulsory 

16 p o o l i n g orders. 

17 MR. BRUCE: I was a c t u a l l y ready t o address 

18 t h a t at c l o s i n g , but I can do t h a t i n a b r i e f . 

19 EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. Appreciate 

20 t h a t . 

21 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: I don't want b r i e f s . 

22 B r i e f s i s a -- I want c l o s i n g statements. When they say 

23 they want t o submit b r i e f s , man, you are going t o give 

24 me a one-foot t h i n g . 

25 (Laughter.) 
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1 EXAMINER BROOKS: I would suggest --

2 MR. BRUCE: That's a minimum, Mr. Examiner. 

3 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Yeah, i t ' s as minimum, 

4 but I want t o read only about two or three pages. What 

5 i s a b r i e f , a w r i t t e n b r i e f ? I mean, I couldn't read i t 

6 i n a year. I don't want b r i e f s . 

7 MR. BRUCE: I t h i n k Mr. Martin and I both 

8 i n the past have been ready t o be b r i e f i n our b r i e f s 

9 and c i t e copies of cases t h a t we r e l y on. 

10 MR. MARTIN: That's f i n e . 

11 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: That would be 

12 wonderful. So I appreciate what you guys -- instead of 

13 doing t h i s --we are going t o do whatever we can t o 

14 accommodate everybody. That's our job here, but not 

15 going forward w i t h a l l t h i s testimony t h a t takes a l o t 

16 of time, we can use i t f o r something else. 

17 I r e a l l y appreciate, Mr. Marti n , f o r you 

18 guys reaching t h i s agreement and Mr. Bruce f o r reaching 

19 the agreement of suspending t h i s hearing and then having 

2 0 t o deal w i t h the submission -- not b r i e f s , but c l o s i n g 

21 statements and your d r a f t order. I f t h a t i s okay w i t h 

22 everybody, t h a t i s what we are going t o do. 

23 With t h a t being said, we get our b r i e f s --

24 not b r i e f s -- c l o s i n g statements and d r a f t order on 

25 Friday, September 13th. 
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W i t h t h a t b e i n g s a i d and everybody knowing 

t h a t , Case Number 14994 w i l l be t a k e n under advisement. 

Thank you v e r y much. 

(Case Number 14994 concludes, 12:22 p.m.) 
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